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2. Corporate Structure 
 

2.1 State the full corporate name of the Issuer or, if the Issuer is an unincorporated 
entity, the full name under which the entity exists and carries on business and the 
address(es) of the Issuer's head and registered office. 

         
Southbridge Resources Corp. (the “Issuer”, the “Company” or “Southbridge”) has a head office 
located at Suite 200 – 1687 West Broadway, Vancouver, BC V6J 1X2 and its registered office is 
located at Suite 700 – 595 Howe Street, Vancouver, BC V6C 2T5.  

 
2.2 State the statute under which the Issuer is incorporated or continued or 

organized or, if the Issuer is an unincorporated entity, the laws of the jurisdiction 
or foreign jurisdiction under which the Issuer is established and exists.   Describe 
the substance of any material amendments to the articles or other constating or 
establishing documents of the Issuer. 

 
The Issuer was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia) on October 
31, 2011 under the name Vanderhoof Gold Corp.  The Issuer changed its name to Southbridge 
Resources Corp. on February 29, 2012.   

 
2.3 Describe, by way of a diagram or otherwise, the intercorporate relationships 

among the Issuer and the Issuer's subsidiaries.  For each subsidiary state  
 

(a) the percentage of votes attaching to all voting securities of the subsidiary 
represented by voting securities beneficially owned, or over which control 
or direction is exercised, by the Issuer;  

 
(b) the place of incorporation or continuance; and 

 
(c) the percentage of each class of restricted shares beneficially owned, or 

over which control or direction is exercised, by the Issuer. 
 
The Company has one wholly-owned subsidiary, Southbridge Exploration Corp. which was 
incorporated in British Columbia.  The Company owns 100% of the votes attaching to all voting 
securities of Southbridge Exploration Corp. 

 
2.4 If the Issuer is requalifying following a fundamental change or is proposing an 

acquisition, amalgamation, merger, reorganization or arrangement, describe by 
way of diagram or otherwise these intercorporate relationships both before and 
after the completion of the proposed transaction. 

 
 The Issuer will be requalifying following a proposed fundamental change as described below.   
 
2.5 Non-corporate Issuers and Issuers incorporated outside of Canada must 

describe how their governing legislation or constating documents differ materially 
from Canadian corporate legislation with respect to the corporate governance 
principles set out in Policy 4. 

 
 The Issuer is incorporated in Canada. 
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3. General Development of the Business 
 
3.1 Describe the general development of the Issuer's business over its three most 

recently completed financial years and any subsequent period.  Include only 
major events or conditions that have influenced the general development of the 
Issuer's business.  If the business consists of the production or distribution of 
more than one product or the rendering of more than one kind of service, 
describe the principal products or services.  Also discuss changes in the 
business of the Issuer that are expected to occur during the current financial year 
of the Issuer. 

 
Since the Company’s incorporation on October 31, 2011, it has been in the business of acquiring 
and exploring mineral properties.  Through its subsidiary, Southbridge Exploration Corp., it 
holds a 100% registered and beneficial interest in four contiguous mineral claims in the 
Omineca Mining Division of British Columbia, together referred to as the Sona Property (the 
“Property”). The Property is in a preliminary stage of exploration and does not have a known 
commercial body of ore or minerals.   
 
The Company proposes to change its business from mineral exploration to the production and 
sale of medical marijuana by acquiring the business of Vodis Innovative Pharmaceuticals Inc. 
(“VODIS”) and the assets of 0934145 BC Ltd. (the “Acquisition”). VODIS has applied for a 
license from Health Canada to become a Licensed Producer under the Marihuana for Medical 
Purposes Regulation. 
 
As at the date of this Listing Statement, the Company raised $7,500 through the issuance of 
1,500,000 common shares, $208,000 through the issuance of 4,160,000 Series A Special 
Warrants and $35,000 through the issuance of 350,000 Series B Special Warrants, before 
deduction of expenses related to the issuance of the common shares and Special Warrants 
totalling $6,000.  In addition, in connection with the proposed Acquisition, the Company raised 
$320,000 through the issuance of 3,200,000 common shares and $310,000 through the issuance 
of 1,550,000 common shares. 

 
3.2 Disclose: 
 

(1) (a) any significant acquisition completed by the Issuer or any  significant 
probable acquisition proposed by the Issuer, for which financial 
statements would be required under National Instrument 41-101 
General Prospectus Requirements if this Listing Statement were a 
prospectus; and 

 
(b) any significant disposition completed by the Issuer during the most 

recently completed financial year or the current financial year for 
which pro forma financial statements would be required under 
National Instrument 41-101 General Prospectus Requirements if this 
Listing Statement were a prospectus.  

 
(2) Under paragraph (1) include particulars of 

 
(a) the nature of the assets acquired or disposed of or to be acquired or 

disposed of; 
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(b) the actual or proposed date of each significant acquisition or 
significant disposition; 

 
(c) the consideration, both monetary and non-monetary paid, or to be 

paid, to or by the Issuer; 
 

(d) any material obligations that must be complied with to keep any 
significant acquisition or significant disposition agreement in good 
standing; 

 
(e) the effect of the significant acquisition or significant disposition on the 

operating results and financial position of the Issuer; 
 

(f) any valuation opinion obtained within the last 12 months required 
under Canadian securities legislation, a directive of a Canadian 
securities regulatory authority, or a requirement of a Canadian stock 
exchange or other Canadian market to support the value of the 
consideration received or paid by the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries 
for the assets, including the name of the author, the date of the 
opinion, the assets to which the opinion relates and the value 
attributed to the assets; and 

 
(g) whether the transaction is with a Related Party of the Issuer and if so, 

disclose the identity of the other parties and the relationship of the 
other parties to the Issuer. 

 
Southbridge, currently a resource issuer, intends to acquire the business of Vodis Innovative 
Pharmaceuticals Inc. (“VODIS”) and the assets (“Assets”) of 0934145 BC Ltd. (“BC Ltd”) (the 
“Acquisition”). VODIS has applied for a license from Health Canada to become a Licensed 
Producer (“License”) under the Marihuana for Medical Purposes Regulation (“MMPR”). 
 
Southbridge, which will change its name to Vodis Pharmaceuticals Inc. (“VP”), has entered into a 
Purchase Agreement dated May 15, 2014 with 0934145 B.C. Ltd. and Pencho Todorev Batanov, 
Ivan Valentinov Miliovski, Derek Good and Otto Folprecht pursuant to which it will issue 36 
million common shares under an escrow agreement and pay, subject to the issuance of the 
License, $500,000 to the principals of VODIS in order to acquire the License and the Assets. The 
proposed Acquisition is expected to close upon the satisfaction of standard conditions precedent 
for a transaction of this nature (“Closing”).  The 36 million shares will be issued to Mr. Folprecht 
as to 3,600,000 shares, Mr. Miliovski as to 10,800,000 shares, Mr. Batanov as to 10,800,000 
shares and Mr. Good as to 10,800,000 shares.  Messrs. Folprecht, Miliovski, Batanov and Good 
are the holders of all the issued and outstanding shares of VODIS.  Messrs. Folprecht and 
Miliovski will become directors of the Company upon Closing of the Acquisition and Mr. 
Folprecht will also become President and CEO of the Company.  
 
Southbridge has agreed to provide a loan to BC Ltd. of $500,000 to complete the upgrading of the 
current production facilities (“Loan”) in order to meet Health Canada regulations prior to the 
Closing of the Acquisition. The loan is secured by a general security agreement and in the event 
that the transaction does not close, the Loan is repayable within 3 months. 
 
In connection with the Acquisition Southbridge has agreed to pay a finder’s fee equal to 4% of 
the total number of the payment shares or 1,440,000 shares.  The finder’s fee will be paid to Brian 
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Gusko as to 720,000 shares and to Hani El Rayess as to 720,000 shares. The finder’s fee shares 
shall be held under a performance escrow agreement whereby the shares will be released upon the 
completion by Southbridge of cumulative financings of not less than $1.5 million dollars.  Mr. 
Gusko will become a director and CFO of the Company upon Closing of the Acquisition. 
 
The principals of VODIS are arms length to Southbridge and will enter into employment and 
non-competition agreements with VP to operate and manage the business subsequent to the 
Closing of the Acquisition.  
 
There is considerable uncertainty surrounding the supply and demand for medical marijuana in 
Canada under the new MMPR regulations which came into force on April 1, 2014. Although it is 
the intent of MMPR to eliminate the production of marijuana by currently licensed users 
(“Patients”), an injunction has been obtained by a group of Patients in BC to stay this aspect of 
the regulation pending a full hearing. As a result, Patients will continue to be able to grow small 
quantities of marijuana for their personal use. Under MMPR, Licensed producers are allowed to 
sell and deliver their products to all Patients in Canada; there are approximately 40,000 Patients 
across Canada. 
 

3.3 Discuss any trend, commitment, event or uncertainty that is both presently known 
to management and reasonably expected to have a material effect on the 
Issuer's business, financial condition or results of operations, providing forward-
looking information based on the Issuer's expectations as of the date of the 
Listing Statement. 

 
Following completion of the proposed Acquisition and issuance of the License as a producer and 
distributor of medical marijuana, the Issuer expects to achieve profitability within 3 months.  
Until then, the Issuer may need more capital than it has available to it or can expect to generate 
through the sale of its products.  In the past, the Issuer has had to raise, by way of equity 
financing, considerable funds to meet its capital needs.  There is no guarantee that the Issuer will 
be able to continue to raise funds needed for its business.  Failure to raise the necessary funds in a 
timely fashion will limit the Issuer’s growth.  
 
The Issuer also faces the same challenges obtaining credit that businesses in all sectors face in the 
wake of the recent global financial crisis. 

 
4 Narrative Description of the Business 
 
4.1 General  
 

(1) Describe the business of the Issuer with reference to the reportable 
operating segments as defined in the Handbook and the Issuer's business 
in general.  Include the following for each reportable operating segment of 
the Issuer: 

 
(a) state the business objectives that the Issuer expects to accomplish in 

the forthcoming 12-month period; 
 
(b) describe each significant event or milestone that must occur for the 

business objectives in (a) to be accomplished and state the specific 
time period in which each event is expected to occur and the costs 
related to each event; 
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Upon completion of the proposed Acquisition, during its first year of operations in its new 
industry, VP will need to achieve certain critical milestones in order to obtain the License and 
produce an acceptable level of operating income from the sale of marijuana to Patients. 
 
1. Conversion of Patient Database 

 
The current Patient database is being converted to the new standards required by Health 
Canada and it is anticipated that the new database will be updated and operational prior to 
the issuance of the License. 

  
2. Extension of production facility lease 

 
The extension of the current lease of the production facility will be completed prior to 
Closing. 

  
3. Installation of security system upgrades 
 

The Installation of security systems upgrades to the production facility to the new Health 
Canada standards will be completed prior to Closing. 

 
4. Completion of production facility upgrades 
 

The renovation and upgrading of the current 6 production labs to the new standards will 
be completed prior to the issuance of the Health Canada license. 

 
5. Issuance of License 
 

VP expects the License to be issued upon the completion of milestones 1 to 4. 
 
6. Website Conversion 
 

Upon the issuance of the License, VP will begin the marketing and sales of its current 
product line on its website. The website will be fully operational upon the issuance of the 
License. 

  
7. Product Marketing 
 

Upon the issuance of the License, VP will begin the marketing and sales of its current 
product line through its website. The product line consists of a number of types of 
marijuana and a number of packaging options. As a current supplier of medical marijuana 
under the predecessor regulation, VP will begin immediate marketing to its existing client 
base. VP expects that it will take approximately three months to reach acceptable levels 
of production, sales and marketing after the issuance of the License. 

 
(c) disclose the total funds available to the Issuer and the following 

breakdown of those funds: 
 

(i) the estimated consolidated working capital (deficiency) as of the 
most recent month end prior to filing the Listing Statement, and 
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(ii) the total other funds, and the sources of such funds, available to 
be used to achieve the objectives and milestones set out in 
paragraphs (a) and (b); and 

 
As at May 31, 2014, the Issuer had working capital of $600,000. 
 

(d) describe in reasonable detail and, if appropriate, using tabular form, 
each of the principal purposes, with approximate amounts, for which 
the funds available described under the preceding paragraph will be 
used by the Issuer. 

 
 Description Amount 

   
 Security Systems – external and internal $175,000 
 Production Labs Upgrades  $105,000 
 Production facility renovations $  20,000 
 Plumbing & Electrical Upgrades  $  20,000 
 Sales & Marketing $  30,000  
 Information and office system upgrade $  15,000 
 Legal & Professional  $  50,000 
 Finders Fee Private Placements $  50,400 
 Unallocated working capital $134,600 
   

 Total:  $600,000 
 

(2) Principal products or services: 
    
 Upon completion of the proposed Acquisition, and upon issuance of the License, VP will 

produce and supply medical marijuana.  VP’s product line consists of a number of types 
of marijuana and a number of packaging options.  

   
(3) Concerning production and sales: 
 
 Upon completion of the proposed Acquisition and the issuance of the License, VP will 

begin immediate marketing to its existing client base. VP expects that it will take 
approximately three months to reach acceptable levels of production, sales and marketing 
after the issuance of the License. 

 
(4) Describe the competitive conditions in the principal markets and 

geographic areas in which the Issuer operates, including, if reasonably 
possible, an assessment of the Issuer's competitive position. 

 
 The introduction of the new Marihuana for Medical Purposes Regulation (MMPR) on 

April 1, 2014 created a new and emerging market for the sale of marihuana (or cannabis) 
to Canadian patients. It was estimated by the National Post in an article by Brian 
Hutchinson on January 17, 2014 that there are approximately 37,000 Canadians 
authorized to possess marijuana for medical purposes under MMPR and that this number 
is expected to grow and “By Health Canada’s own estimate, the number of licensed 
medical marijuana consumers will increase almost ten-fold in the next decade, to 
approximately 309,000, as more evidence about the drug’s efficacy merges, and ore 
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doctors become willing to prescribe it to patients. Health Canada estimates that by 2024, 
the “legal marijuana supply industry” may have annual revenues of $1.3 billion.” 

 
 There are a number of large, well financed producers that are already licensed under 

MMPR and plan to build large, state of the art, purpose build facilities that would 
compete directly against VP. “Under the new rules, only dried cannabis may be offered 
for offered for sale, and it must be mailed or couriered directly from the authorized 
producer to the customer, in child-proof bottles. ...(Patients) will be permitted to possess 
a maximum of 150 grams of dried marijuana, or 30 times their daily dose, whatever is 
less.” 

 
 However, there is considerable uncertainty surrounding the supply and demand for 

medical marijuana in Canada. “Lawsuits have been filed in Ontario and B.C.; plaintiffs 
are hoping to stop Health Canada’s new MMPR from being fully implemented” to allow 
patients to continue “to produce their own medicine.” 

 
(5) With respect to lending operations of an Issuer's business, describe the 

investment policies and lending and investment restrictions. 
 
 N/A. 
 
(6) Disclose the nature and results of any bankruptcy, or any receivership or 

similar proceedings against the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries or any 
voluntary bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceedings by the Issuer or 
any of its subsidiaries, within the three most recently completed financial 
years or the current financial year. 

 
There have not been any bankruptcy or receivership or similar proceedings against the 
Issuer within the three most recently completed financial years or the current financial 
year. 

(7) Disclose the nature and results of any material restructuring transaction of 
the Issuer within the three most recently completed financial years or 
completed during or proposed for the current financial year. 

 
 There has not been any material reorganization of the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries (if 

any) within the three most recently completed financial years or the current financial 
year. 

(8) If the Issuer has implemented social or environmental policies that are 
fundamental to the Issuer’s operations, such as policies regarding the 
Issuer’s relationship with the environment or with the communities in 
which the Issuer does business, or human rights policies, describe them 
and the steps the Issuer has taken to implement them. 

 
  The Issuer has not implemented social or environmental policies that are fundamental to 

the Issuer’s operations. 

Companies with Asset-backed Securities Outstanding 

4.2 In respect of any outstanding asset-backed securities, disclose the following 
information: 
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 N/A. 
 
4.3 For Issuers with a mineral project, disclose and insert here the information 

required by Appendix A for each property material to the Issuer. 
 
 N/A. 
 
4.4 For Issuers with Oil and Gas Operations disclose and insert here the information 

required by Appendix B (in tabular form, if appropriate). 
 
 N/A. 
 
5. Selected Consolidated Financial Information  
 
5.1 Annual Information — Provide the following financial data for the Issuer in 

summary form for each of the last three completed financial years and any period 
subsequent to the most recent financial year end for which financial statements 
have been prepared:  

 
(a) net sales or total revenues; 
 
(b) income from continuing operations, in total and on a per share basis and 

fully diluted per share basis, calculated in accordance with the Handbook; 
 
(c) net income or loss, in total and on a per share and fully diluted per share 

basis, calculated in accordance with the Handbook; 
 
(d) total assets; 
 
(e) total long-term financial liabilities as defined in the Handbook; 
 
(f)  cash dividends declared per share for each class of share; and 
 
(g) such other information as would enhance an investor’s understanding of 

the Issuer’s financial condition and results of operations and would 
highlight other trends in financial condition and results of operations. 

 
Selected annual financial information for the operations of the Company for the year ended June 
30, 2013 and the period from incorporation on October 31, 2011 to June 30, 2012 is presented in 
the table below: 

 
 June 30, 2013 Period from October 31, 

2011 (date of incorporation) 
to June 30, 2012 

Total Revenue $Nil $Nil 
Total Profit (Loss) $(78,896) $(84,718) 
Basic and Diluted Profit (Loss) per Share $Nil $Nil 
Total Assets $140,266 $200,982 
Total Long-Term Financial Liabilities $Nil $Nil 
Distributions or Cash Dividends Per Share $Nil $Nil 
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Discussion of the factors affecting the comparability of the data, including 
discontinued operations, changes in accounting policies, significant acquisitions 
or significant dispositions and major changes in the direction of the Issuer's 
business: 
 
N/A. 

 
5.2 Quarterly Information — For each of the eight most recently completed quarters 

ending at the end of the most recently completed financial year, provide the 
information required in paragraphs (a), (b) and (b) of Section 5.1. 
 
The Company did not become a reporting issuer until September 6, 2012.  Prior to that date it was 
not required to and did not prepare quarterly financial statements for any period.   
 

 June 30, 
2013 

 
$ 

March 31, 
2013 

 
$ 

December 
31, 2012 

 
$ 

September 
30, 2012 

 
$ 

Total Revenue $Nil $Nil $Nil $Nil 
Total Profit (Loss) $(19,144) $(15,632) $(25,657) $(18,463) 
Basic and Diluted Profit 
(Loss) per Share 

$(0.01) $(0.01) $(0.02) $(0.10) 

Total Assets $140,266 $141,396 $148,963 $171,319 
Total Non-Current 
Financial Liabilities 

$Nil $Nil $Nil $Nil 

Distributions or Cash 
Dividends Per Share 

$Nil $Nil $Nil $Nil 

 
5.3 Dividends – disclose: 
 
 (a) any restriction that could prevent the Issuer from paying dividends; and 
 
 There are no restrictions that could prevent the Issuer from paying dividends.  
 

 (b) the Issuer's dividend policy and, if a decision has been made to change the 
dividend policy, the intended change in dividend policy. 

 
 The Issuer has not paid dividends in the past and does not anticipate paying dividends in the near 

future.  The Issuer expects to retain any earnings to finance future growth and, when appropriate, 
retire debt. 

 
5.4 Foreign GAAP — An Issuer may present the selected consolidated financial 

information required in this section on the basis of foreign GAAP if: 
 
 (a)  the Issuer's primary financial statements have been prepared using foreign 

GAAP; and 
 
 (b)  if the Issuer is required under applicable securities legislation to have 

reconciled its financial statements to Canadian GAAP at the time of filing its 
financial statements or the Issuer has otherwise done so, a cross reference 
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to the notes to the financial statements containing the reconciliation of the 
financial statements to Canadian GAAP is included. 
 

The Issuer's financial statements have been prepared using Canadian GAAP. 
 
6. Management's Discussion and Analysis 
 
Annual MD&A 
 

6.1 Date - Specify the date of the MD&A. The date of the MD&A must be no 
earlier than the date of the auditor’s report on the financial statements for 
the Issuer’s most recently completed financial year. 
 
The following management’s discussion and analysis is as of October 25, 2013. 

 
6.2 Overall Performance - Provide an analysis of the Issuer’s financial 

condition, results of operations and cash flows. Discuss known trends, 
demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that are reasonably likely 
to have an effect on the Issuer’s business. Compare the Issuer’s 
performance in the most recently completed financial year to the prior 
year’s performance. The analysis should address at least the following: 

 
(a) operating segments that are reportable segments as those terms 

are used in the Handbook; 
 
(b) other parts of the business if 
 

(i) they have a disproportionate effect on revenues, income or 
cash needs, or 

 
(ii) there are any legal or other restrictions on the flow of funds 

from one part of the Issuer’s business to another;  
 
(c) industry and economic factors affecting the Issuer’s performance; 
 
(d) why changes have occurred or expected changes have not 

occurred in the Issuer’s financial condition and results of 
operations; and 

 
(e) the effect of discontinued operations on current operations. 
 
The significant events for the year ended June 30, 2013 are as follows: 
 
 4,510,000 common shares were issued pursuant to the exercising of 4,160,000 Class 

A Special Warrants and 350,000 Class B Special Warrants 
 350,000 stock options were granted to its Named Executive Officers and directors at 

an exercise price of $0.05 per share 
 $53,967 of exploration and evaluation expenditures were incurred on the Sona 

Property 
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Selected Annual Financial Information 
 
6.3 Provide the following financial data derived from the Issuer’s financial 

statements for each of the three most recently completed financial years: 
 

(a) net sales or total revenues; 
 
(b) income or loss before discontinued operations and extraordinary 

items, in total and on a per-share and diluted per-share basis; 
 
(c) net income or loss, in total and on a per-share and diluted per-

share basis; 
 
(d) total assets; 
 
(e) total long-term financial liabilities; and 
 
(f) cash dividends declared per-share for each class of share. 

 
Selected annual financial information for the operations of the Company for the year 
ended June 30, 2013 and the period from incorporation on October 31, 2011 to June 30, 
2012 is presented in the table below: 

 
 June 30, 

2013 
Period from October 31, 

2011 (date of incorporation) 
to June 30, 2012 

Total Revenue $Nil $Nil 
Total Profit (Loss) $(78,896) $(84,718) 
Basic and Diluted Profit (Loss) per Share $Nil $Nil 
Total Assets $140,266 $200,982 
Total Long-Term Financial Liabilities $Nil $Nil 
Distributions or Cash Dividends Per Share $Nil $Nil 

 
6.4 Variations - Discuss the factors that have caused period to period 

variations including discontinued operations, changes in accounting 
policies, significant acquisitions or dispositions and changes in the 
direction of the Issuer’s business, and any other information the Issuer 
believes would enhance an understanding of, and would highlight trends 
in, financial condition and results of operations. 
 
N/A.   

 
6.5 Results of Operations - Discuss management’s analysis of the Issuer’s 

operations for the most recently completed financial year, including: 
 

(a) net sales or total revenues by operating business segment, 
including any changes in such amounts caused by selling prices, 
volume or quantity of goods or services being sold, or the 
introduction of new products or services; 
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(b) any other significant factors that caused changes in net sales or 
total revenues; 

 
(c) cost of sales or gross profit; 
 
(d) for Issuers that have significant projects that have not yet 

generated operating revenue, describe each project, including the 
Issuer’s plan for the project and the status of the project relative to 
that plan, and expenditures made and how these relate to 
anticipated timing and costs to take the project to the next stage of 
the project plan; 

 
(e) for resource Issuers with producing mines, identify milestones such 

as mine expansion plans, productivity improvements, or plans to 
develop a new deposit; 

 
(f) factors that caused a change in the relationship between costs and 

revenues, including changes in costs of labour or materials, price 
changes or inventory adjustments; 

 
(g) commitments, events, risks or uncertainties that you reasonably 

believe will materially affect the Issuer’s future performance 
including net sales, total revenue and income or loss before 
discontinued operations and extraordinary items; 

 
(h) effect of inflation and specific price changes on the Issuer’s net 

sales and total revenues and on income or loss before discontinued 
operations and extraordinary items; 

 
(i) a comparison in tabular form of disclosure you previously made 

about how the Issuer was going to use proceeds (other than 
working capital) from any financing, an explanation of variances 
and the impact of the variances, if any, on the Issuer’s ability to 
achieve its business objectives and milestones; and 

 
(j) unusual or infrequent events or transactions. 

 
The Company is an exploration stage company and has no operating revenue. 
Expenditures relating to mineral exploration are capitalized. During the year ended June 
30, 2013, the Company incurred $53,967 in exploration expenditures. The details of the 
expenditures are included in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. 
 
The Company’s net loss for the year ended June 30, 2013 is $78,896 (2012 - $84,718).  
As at June 30, 2013, the Company had $49,396 (2012 - $175,401) in cash. 
 
The Company’s operating expenses for the year ended June 30, 2013 totalled $78,896 
(2012 - $84,718), which includes consulting and administration fees of $26,179 (2012 - 
$32,180) and share based compensation of $9,091 (2012 - $30,000). These expenditures 
were incurred primarily with respect to maintaining the listing of the Company’s shares 
on the CSE.  
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The Company’s total assets as at June 30, 2013 were $140,266 (2012 - $200,982). 
 

6.6 Summary of Quarterly Results - Provide the following information in 
summary form, derived from the Issuer’s financial statements, for each of 
the eight most recently completed quarters: 

 
(a) net sales or total revenues; 
 
(b) income or loss before discontinued operations and extraordinary 

items, in total and on a per-share and diluted per-share basis; and 
 
(c) net income or loss, in total and on a per-share and diluted per-

share basis. 
 

Discuss the factors that have caused variations over the quarters 
necessary to understand general trends that have developed and the 
seasonality of the business. 
 

 March 31, 
2014 

December 
31, 2013 

 
$ 

September 
30, 2013 

 
$ 

June 30, 
2013 

 
$ 

March 31, 
2013 

 
$ 

December 
31, 2012 

 
$ 

September 
30, 2012 

 
$ 

Total Revenue $Nil $Nil $Nil $Nil $Nil $Nil $Nil 
Total Profit (Loss) $(30,585) $(8,164) $(2,093) $(19,144) $(15,632) $(25,657) $(18,463) 
Basic and Diluted 
Profit (Loss) per Share 

$(0.005) $(0.001) $(0.00) $(0.01) $(0.01) $(0.02) $(0.10) 

Total Assets $699,135 $118,164 $171,319 $140,266 $141,396 $148,963 $171,319 
Total Non-Current 
Financial Liabilities 

$Nil $Nil $Nil $Nil $Nil $Nil $Nil 

Distributions or Cash 
Dividends Per Share 

$Nil $Nil $Nil $Nil $Nil $Nil $Nil 

 
During the three month period ended June 30, 2013, the Company incurred $Nil in 
exploration expenditures. 
 
The Company’s net loss for the three-month period ended June 30, 2013 is $19,144. 
 
The Company’s operating expenses for the three-month period ended June 30, 2013 
totalled $19,144. These expenditures were incurred primarily with respect to maintaining 
the listing of the Company’s shares on the CSE. 
 
The Company incurred approximately $10,000 in property related expenses in the quarter 
ended December 31, 2012 that resulted in an increased loss for the period otherwise there 
were very little variations over the quarters. 

 
6.7 Liquidity - Provide an analysis of the Issuer’s liquidity, including: 

 
(a) its ability to generate sufficient amounts of cash and cash 

equivalents, in the short term and the long term, to maintain the 
Issuer’s capacity, to meet the Issuer’s planned growth or to fund 
development activities; 
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(b) trends or expected fluctuations in the Issuer’s liquidity, taking into 

account demands, commitments, events or uncertainties; 
 
(c) its working capital requirements; 
 
(d) liquidity risks associated with financial instruments; 
 
(e) if the Issuer has or expects to have a working capital deficiency, 

discuss its ability to meet obligations as they become due and how 
you expect it to remedy the deficiency; 

 
(f) balance sheet conditions or income or cash flow items that may 

affect the Issuer’s liquidity; 
 
(g) legal or practical restrictions on the ability of subsidiaries to transfer 

funds to the Issuer and the effect these restrictions have had or 
may have on the ability of the Issuer to meet its obligations; and 

 
(h) defaults or arrears or anticipated defaults or arrears on 
 

(i) dividend payments, lease payments, interest or principal 
payment on debt, 

(ii) debt covenants during the most recently completed financial 
year, and 

(iii) redemption or retraction or sinking fund payments; and 
 

(i) details on how the Issuer intends to cure the default or arrears. 
 

Since incorporation, the Company’s capital resources have been limited. The Company 
has had to rely upon the sale of equity securities for the cash required for property 
acquisition payments, office and miscellaneous expenses and accounting, audit and legal 
fees, among other expenses. 
 
As at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2013, the Company’s working capital totaled 
$47,909 and $37,652 respectively. As at May 31, 2014, the Company’s working capital 
totaled $600,000.  
 
The Company expects that its working capital as at May 31, 2014 will be sufficient for 
the Company to meet its objectives and milestones for the next 12 months and continue 
operations for at least eighteen months.  If required, the Company may seek to raise 
additional funds via one or more private placements. 
 

6.8 Capital Resources - Provide an analysis of the Issuer’s capital resources, 
including 

 
(a) commitments for capital expenditures as of the date of the Issuer’s 

financial statements including: 
 
(i) the amount, nature and purpose of these commitments, 
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(ii) the expected source of funds to meet these commitments, 

and 
 
(iii) expenditures not yet committed but required to maintain the 

Issuer’s capacity, to meet the Issuer’s planned growth or to 
fund development activities; 

 
(b) known trends or expected fluctuations in the Issuer’s capital 

resources, including expected changes in the mix and relative cost 
of these resources; and 

 
(c) sources of financing that the Issuer has arranged but not yet used. 
 
Upon completion of the proposed Acquisition, until it is profitable, the Company will 
continue to require funds to meet its ongoing day-to-day operating requirements and will 
have to continue to rely on equity and debt financing. There can be no assurance that 
financing, whether debt or equity, will always be available to the Company in the amount 
required at any particular time or for any particular period or, if available, that it can be 
obtained on terms satisfactory to the Company. The Company does not have any 
commitments for material capital expenditures over either the near or long term and none 
are presently contemplated other than as disclosed above and/or over normal operating 
requirements. 
 
The Company’s ongoing legal, accounting, auditing, stock exchange, and related 
administration expenses are estimated to cost about $60,000 during the next 12 months, 
or about $5,000 per month.  

 
6.9 Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements - Discuss any off-balance sheet 

arrangements that have, or are reasonably likely to have, a current or 
future effect on the results of operations or financial condition of the Issuer 
including, without limitation, such considerations as liquidity and capital 
resources. This discussion shall include their business purpose and 
activities, their economic substance, risks associated with the 
arrangements, and the key terms and conditions associated with any 
commitments, including: 

 
(a) a description of the other contracting part(ies); 
 
(b) the effects of terminating the arrangement; 
 
(c) the amounts receivable or payable, revenues, expenses and cash 

flows resulting from the arrangement; 
 
(d) the nature and amounts of any other obligations or liabilities arising 

from the arrangement that could require the Issuer to provide 
funding under the arrangement and the triggering events or 
circumstances that could cause them to arise; and 
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(e) any known event, commitment, trend or uncertainty that may affect 
the availability or benefits of the arrangement (including any 
termination) and the course of action that management has taken, 
or proposes to take, in response to any such circumstances. 

 
There are no off-balance sheet arrangements to which the Company is committed. 

 
6.10 Transactions with Related Parties - Discuss all transactions involving 

related parties as defined by the Handbook. 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2013, the Company paid or accrued geological consulting 
fees included in exploration and evaluation assets of $4,700 (June 30, 2012 - $10,000) to 
a director or a company controlled by that director. 
 
During the period ended June 30, 2012, the Company repaid a total of $11,400 in 
unsecured, noninterest bearing loans due to a director and former directors. 
 
During the period ended June 30, 2012 the Company recorded share-based compensation 
of $30,000 in connection with the issuance of 1,500,000 common shares to the President 
and founder of the Company. 
 
The transactions with related parties were in the normal course of operations and were 
measured at the exchange value, which represented the amount of consideration 
established and agreed to by the parties. 
 
Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities as at June 30, 2013 is $Nil (June 30, 
2012 - $6,200) due to a company controlled by a director. These amounts are non-interest 
bearing with no fixed terms of repayment. 
 
During the nine months ended March 31, 2014, the Company did not enter into any 
related party transactions. 

 
6.11 Fourth Quarter - Discuss and analyze fourth quarter events or items that 

affected the Issuer’s financial condition, cash flows or results of 
operations, including extraordinary items, year-end and other adjustments, 
seasonal aspects of the Issuer’s business and dispositions of business 
segments. 
 
During the three month period ended June 30, 2013, the Company incurred $Nil in 
exploration expenditures. 
 
The Company’s net loss for the three-month period ended June 30, 2013 is $19,144. 
 
The Company’s operating expenses for the three-month period ended June 30, 2013 
totalled $19,144. These expenditures were incurred primarily with respect to maintaining 
the listing of the Company’s shares on the CSE. 

 
6.12 Proposed Transactions - Discuss the expected effect on financial 

condition, results of operations and cash flows of any proposed asset or 
business acquisition or disposition if the Issuer’s board of directors, or 
senior management who believe that confirmation of the decision by the 
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board is probable, have decided to proceed with the transaction. Include 
the status of any required shareholder or regulatory approvals. 
 
The Company proposes to acquire VODIS and the Assets (see sections 3 and 4. “General 
Development of the Business” above).   

 
6.13 Changes in Accounting Policies including Initial Adoption - Discuss and 

analyze any changes in the Issuer’s accounting policies, including: 
 

(a) for any accounting policies that management has adopted or 
expects to adopt subsequent to the end of the most recently 
completed financial year, including changes management has 
made or expects to make voluntarily and those due to a change in 
an accounting standard or a new accounting standard that you do 
not have to adopt until a future date:  
 
(i) describe the new standard, the date the Issuer required to 

adopt it and, if determined, the date the Issuer plans to adopt 
it, 

 
(ii) disclose the methods of adoption permitted by the 

accounting standard and the method management expects 
to use, 

 
(iii) discuss the expected effect on the Issuer’s financial 

statements, or if applicable, state that management cannot 
reasonably estimate the effect, and 

 
(iv) discuss the potential effect on the Issuer’s business, for 

example technical violations or default of debt covenants or 
changes in business practices; and 

 
(b) for any accounting policies that management has initially adopted 

during the most recently completed financial year,  
 
(i) describe the events or transactions that gave rise to the 

initial adoption of an accounting policy, 
 
(ii) describe the accounting principle that has been adopted and 

the method of applying that principle, 
 
(iii) discuss the effect resulting from the initial adoption of the 

accounting policy on the Issuer’s financial condition, 
changes in financial condition and results of operations, 

 
(iv) if the Issuer is permitted a choice among acceptable 

accounting principles, 
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(A) state that management made a choice among 
acceptable alternatives, 

 
(B) identify the alternatives, 
 
(C) describe why management made the choice that you 

did, and 
 
(D) discuss the effect, where material, on the Issuer’s 

financial condition, changes in financial condition and 
results of operations under the alternatives not 
chosen; and 

 
(v) if no accounting literature exists that covers the accounting 

for the events or transactions giving rise to management’s 
initial adoption of the accounting policy, explain 
management’s decision regarding which accounting principle 
to use and the method of applying that principle. 

 
New standards not yet adopted 
 
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet 
effective as of June 30, 2013 and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated 
financial statements. None of these are expected to have a material effect on the 
consolidated financial statements of the Company. 
 
IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments” 
 
In November 2009, the IASB published IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”, which covers 
the classification and measurement of financial assets as part of its project to replace IAS 
39, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.” In October 2010, the 
requirements for classifying and measuring financial liabilities were added to IFRS 9. 
Under this guidance, entities have the option to recognize financial liabilities at fair value 
through earnings. IFRS 9 is effective on January 1, 2015. Early adoption is permitted and 
the standard is required to be applied retrospectively. 
 
IFRS 10, “Consolidated Financial Statements” 
 
IFRS 10, “Consolidated Financial Statements”, requires an entity to consolidate an 
investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with 
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. 
Under existing IFRS, consolidation is required when an entity has the power to govern 
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. 
IFRS 10 replaces SIC-12, “Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities”, and parts of IAS 
27, “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”. The standard is effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. 
 
IFRS 11, “Joint Arrangements” 
 
IFRS 11, “Joint Arrangements”, requires a venturer to classify its interest in a joint 
arrangement as a joint venture or a joint operation. Joint ventures will be accounted for 
using the equity method of accounting whereas for a joint operation, the venturer will 
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recognize its share of the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of the joint operation. 
Under existing IFRS, entities have the choice to proportionately consolidate or equity 
account for interests in joint ventures. IFRS 11 supersedes IAS 31, “Interests in Joint 
Ventures”, and SIC-13, “Jointly Controlled Entities – Nonmonetary Contributions by 
Venturers”. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 
2013. 
 
IFRS 12, “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities” 
 
IFRS 12, “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”, establishes disclosure requirements 
for interests in other entities, such as joint arrangements, associates, special purpose 
vehicles and off balance sheet vehicles. The standard carries forward existing disclosures 
and also introduces significant additional disclosure requirements that address the nature 
of, and risks associated with, an entity’s interests in other entities. The standard is 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. 
 
IFRS 13, “Fair Value Measurement” 
 
IFRS 13, “Fair Value Measurement”, is a comprehensive standard for fair value 
measurement and disclosure requirements for use across all IFRS standards. The new 
standard clarifies that fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset, or paid 
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants, at the 
measurement date. It also establishes disclosures about fair value measurement. Under 
existing IFRS, guidance on measuring and disclosing fair value is dispersed among the 
specific standards requiring fair value measurements and in many cases does not reflect a 
clear measurement basis or consistent disclosures. 
 
IAS 28, “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amended in 2011)” 
 
IAS 28 (2011), “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”, supersedes IAS 28 
“Investments in Associates” and prescribes the accounting for investments in associates 
and sets out the requirements for the application of the equity method when accounting 
for investments in associates and joint ventures. The Standard defines 'significant 
influence' and provides guidance on how the equity method of accounting is to be applied 
(including exemptions from applying the equity method in some cases). It also prescribes 
how investments in associates and joint ventures should be tested for impairment. The 
amended standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. 
 

6.14 Financial Instruments and Other Instruments - For financial instruments 
and other instruments: 

 
(a) discuss the nature and extent of the Issuer’s use of, including 

relationships among, the instruments and the business purposes 
that they serve; 

 
(b) describe and analyze the risks associated with the instruments; 
 
(c) describe how management manages the risks in paragraph (b), 

including a discussion of the objectives, general strategies and 
instruments used to manage the risks, including any hedging 
activities; 
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(d) disclose the financial statement classification and amounts of 
income, expenses, gains and losses associated with the 
instrument; and 

 
(e) discuss the significant assumptions made in determining the fair 

value of financial instruments, the total amount and financial 
statement classification of the change in fair value of financial 
instruments recognized in income for the period, and the total 
amount and financial statement classification of deferred or 
unrecognized gains and losses on financial instruments. 

 
The Company has classified its cash as fair-value-through-profit-and-loss. Accounts 
payable and accrued liabilities are classified as other liabilities and are measured at 
amortized cost. Due to their short-term nature, the carrying amounts of accounts payable 
and accrued liabilities approximate fair value. 
 

Fair values 
 
The recorded value of the Company’s accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
approximate their fair value due to their demand nature and short term to maturity. Cash 
is carried at fair value using a level 1 fair value measurement. 
 
Credit risk 
 
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to credit risk consist of cash. 
The Company deposits cash with high quality financial institutions as determined by 
rating agencies in Canada for which management believes the risk of loss to be minimal. 
 
Currency risk 
 
The Company is primarily engaged in the acquisition of mineral properties which are 
located in Canada. Management believes that the risk of loss due to fluctuating currencies 
is minimal. 
 
Interest rate risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 
 
The Company’s cash is held in financial institutions in interest bearing accounts. The 
Company currently does not have interest bearing debt and is not exposed to significant 
interest rate risk. 
 
Liquidity risk 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its obligations as they 
become due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure that it will 
have sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities when due. The Company manages its liquidity 
risk by forecasting cash flows from operations and anticipating any investing and 
financing activities. Management and the Board of Directors are actively involved in the 
review, planning and approval of significant expenditures and commitments. 
Management believes that the Company has sufficient cash resources to meet its 
obligations as they become due. 
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Price risk 
 
The Company is exposed to price risk with respect to commodity and equity prices. The 
ability of the Company to explore its mineral properties and the future profitability of the 
Company are directly related to the market price of gold and other precious metals. The 
Company monitors gold and other commodity prices to determine the appropriate course 
of action to be taken by the Company. 

 
Interim MD&A 

 
6.15 Date - Specify the date of the interim MD&A. 
 

The following management’s discussion and analysis is as of May 28, 2014. 
 
6.16 Updated Disclosure - Interim MD&A must update the Issuer’s annual 

MD&A for all disclosure required by sections 6.2 to 6.14 except sections 
6.3 and 6.4. This disclosure must include: 

 
(a) a discussion of management’s analysis of 
 

(i) current quarter and year-to-date results including a 
comparison of results of operations and cash flows to the 
corresponding periods in the previous year; 

 
(ii) changes in results of operations and elements of income or 

loss that are not related to ongoing business operations; 
 
(iii) any seasonal aspects of the Issuer’s business that affect its 

financial condition, results of operations or cash flows; and 
 

For the three months ended March 31, 2014  
 
During the three-month period ended March 31, 2014, the Company incurred 
$Nil (2013 – $52,267) in exploration expenditures.  
 
The Company’s net loss for the three-month period ended March 31, 2014 is 
$30,585 (2013 - $15,632). 
  
The Company’s operating expenses for the three-month period ended March 31, 
2014 totalled $30,585 which included $3,855 for listing and transfer agent costs 
and $16,034 for legal costs. For the period ended March 31, 2013, the Company 
expenses totalled $15,632 which included $Nil for listing and transfer agent costs 
and $5,000 for legal costs. These expenditures were incurred primarily with 
respect to maintaining the listing of the Company’s shares on the CSE. 
 
For the nine months ended March 31, 2014  
 
During the nine month period ended March 31, 2014, the Company incurred $Nil 
in exploration expenditures.  
 
The Company’s net loss for the nine-month period ended March 31, 2014 is 
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$40,842 (2013 - $59,752). 
  
The Company’s operating expenses for the nine-month period ended March 31, 
2014 totalled $40,842 which included $12,763 for listing and transfer agent costs 
and $15,804 for legal costs. For the period ended March 31, 2013, the Company 
expenses totalled $59,752 which included $Nil for listing and transfer agent costs 
and $28,453 for legal costs. These expenditures were incurred primarily with 
respect to maintaining the listing of the Company’s shares on the CSE. 

 
(b) a comparison of the Issuer’s interim financial condition to the 

Issuer’s financial condition as at the most recently completed 
financial year-end. 

 
N/A. 

 
6.17 Additional Disclosure for Issuers without Significant Revenue: 
 

(a) unless the information is disclosed in the financial statements to 
which the annual or interim MD&A relates, an Issuer that has not 
had significant revenue from operations in either of its last two 
financial years must disclose a breakdown of material components 
of: 

 
(i) capitalized or expensed exploration and development costs, 
 
(ii) expensed research and development costs, 
 
(iii) deferred development costs, 
 
(iv) general and administration expenses, and 
 
(v) any material costs, whether capitalized, deferred or expensed, 

not referred to in paragraphs (i) through (iv); 
 

(b) if the Issuer’s business primarily involves mining exploration and 
development, the analysis of capitalized or expensed exploration 
and development costs must be presented on a property-by-
property basis; and 

 
(c) the disclosure in the annual MD&A must be for the two most 

recently completed financial years and the disclosure in the interim 
MD&A for the each year-to-date interim period and the comparative 
period presented in the interim statements. 

 
The Company has not had significant revenue from operations since its incorporation on 
October 31, 2011. 
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Period From Incorporation to June 30, 2012 
 
During the period ended June 30, 2012, the Company did not generate any revenue.  
Expenses during this period were $84,718 and include: consulting and administration fees 
of $32,180, office and miscellaneous expenses of $1,155, professional fees of $21,383 
and share based compensation of $30,000. As at June 30, 2012, the Company had mineral 
property interests of $18,100, which consisted of acquisition costs of $383 and 
exploration costs totalling $17,717, which is comprised of $10,000 in geological 
consulting fees and $7,717 in exploration expenses. 
 
Financial Year Ending June 30, 2013 
 
During the financial year ended June 30, 2013, the Company did not generate any 
revenue.  Expenses during this period were $78,896 and include: consulting and 
administration fees of $26,179, office and miscellaneous expenses of $10,173, 
professional fees of $33,453 and share based compensation of $9,091. As at June 30, 
2013, the Company had mineral property interests of $72,067, which consisted of 
acquisition costs of $383 and exploration costs totalling $71,684, which is comprised of 
$40,404 in geological expenses and $31,280 in drilling expenses.  Of the exploration 
expenditures, $53,967 was incurred during the financial year ended June 30, 2013. 
 
Nine-Month Period Ending March 31, 2014 
 
During the nine-month period ended March 31, 2014, the Company did not generate any 
revenue.  Expenses during this period were $40,842 and include: professional fees of 
$15,804, transfer agent and filing fees of $12,763 and office and miscellaneous expenses 
of $12,275. As at March 31, 2014, the Company had mineral property interests of 
$72,068, which consisted of acquisition costs of $383 and exploration costs totalling 
$71,685. No exploration expenditures were incurred during the nine months ended March 
31, 2014. 

6.18 Description of Securities: 

(a) disclose the designation and number or principal amount of: 

(i) each class and series of voting or equity securities of the 
Issuer for which there are securities outstanding, 

(ii) each class and series of securities of the Issuer for which 
there are securities outstanding if the securities are 
convertible into, or exercisable or exchangeable for, voting or 
equity securities of the Issuer, and 

(iii) subject to subsection (b), each class and series of voting or 
equity securities of the Issuer that are issuable on the 
conversion, exercise or exchange of outstanding securities of 
the Issuer; 

(b) if the exact number or principal amount of voting or equity securities 
of the Issuer that are issuable on the conversion, exercise or 
exchange of outstanding securities of the Issuer is not 
determinable, the Issuer must disclose the maximum number or 
principal amount of each class and series of voting or equity 
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securities that are issuable on the conversion, exercise or 
exchange of outstanding securities of the Issuer and, if that 
maximum number or principal amount is not determinable, the 
Issuer must describe the exchange or conversion features and the 
manner in which the number or principal amount of voting or equity 
securities will be determined; and 

(c) the disclosure under subsections (a) and (b) must be prepared as 
of the latest practicable date.  

 
As at the date of this Listing Statement, the Company had the following 
securities outstanding: 
 
Common shares: 10,760,000 common shares without par value 
Stock options: 350,000 

Upon completion of the proposed Acquisition, the Company will have the 
following securities outstanding: 
 
Common shares: 48,200,000 common shares without par value 
Stock options: 350,000  

6.19 Provide Breakdown: 

(a) if the Issuer has not had significant revenue from operations in 
either of its last two financial years, disclose a breakdown of 
material components of: 

(i) capitalized or expensed exploration and development costs, 

(ii) expensed research and development costs, 

(iii) deferred development costs, 

(iv) general and administrative expenses, and 

(v) any material costs, whether capitalized, deferred or 
expensed, not referred to in paragraphs (i) through (iv); 

(b) present the analysis of capitalized or expensed exploration and 
development costs required by subsection (a) on a property-by-
property basis, if the Issuer’s business primarily involves mining 
exploration and development; and 

(c) provide the disclosure in subsection (a) for the following periods: 

(i) the two most recently completed financial years, and 

(ii) the most recent year-to-date interim period and the 
comparative year-to-date period presented in the interim 
financial statements included, if any. 

Subsection (a) does not apply if the information required under that 
subsection has been disclosed in the financial statements. 
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See section 6.17 above. 

 
6.20 Negative cash-flow - If the Issuer had negative operating cash flow in its 

most recently completed financial year for which financial statements have 
been included, disclose: 

 
(a) the period of time the proceeds raised are expected to fund 

operations; 
 
(b) the estimated total operating costs necessary for the Issuer to 

achieve its stated business objectives during that period of time; 
and 

 
(c) the estimated amount of other material capital expenditures during 

that period of time. 
 
  See section 4.1(1) above. 
 

6.21 Additional disclosure for Issuers with significant equity investees: 
 

if the Issuer has a significant equity investee 

(i) summarized information as to the assets, liabilities and 
results of operations of the equity investee, and 

(ii) the Issuer’s proportionate interest in the equity investee and 
any contingent issuance of securities by the equity investee 
that might significantly affect the Issuer’s share of earnings; 
and 

provide the disclosure in subsection (a) for the following periods 

(i) the two most recently completed financial years, and 

(ii) the most recent year-to-date interim period and the 
comparative year-to-date period presented in the interim 
financial statements included in the Listing Statement, if 
any. 

Subsection (a) does not apply if: 

(i) the information required under that subsection has been 
disclosed in the financial statements included, or 

(ii) the Issuer includes separate financial statements of the 
equity investee for the periods referred to in subsection (b). 

 
N/A. 
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7. Market for Securities 
 
7.1 Identify the exchange(s) and quotation and trade reporting system(s) on which 

the Issuer's securities are listed and posted for trading or quoted. 
 
 The Issuer’s common shares are listed and posted for trading on the CSE under the trading 

symbol SOU.   
 
8. Consolidated Capitalization 
 
8.1 Describe any material change in, and the effect of the material change on, the 

share and loan capital of the Issuer, on a consolidated basis, since the date of 
the comparative financial statements for the Issuer's most recently completed 
financial year contained in the Listing Statement. 

 
The following table details material changes to the share and loan capital of the Company from 
the date of the financial statements for the Company’s most recently completed financial year-end 
to the date of this Listing Statement and upon completion of the proposed Acquisition. 
 

Designation of 
Security 

Number 
Authorized 

Outstanding as at June 30, 
2013 (audited) 

Outstanding as at the date 
of this Listing Statement 

Outstanding on completion of 
the proposed Acquisition 

  Amount Number Amount Number Amount Number 
Common Shares unlimited $244,500 6,010,000 $874,500 10,760,000  48,200,000 
Long Term Debt n/a $Nil n/a $Nil n/a $Nil n/a 
Short Term Debt n/a $20,289 n/a $Nil n/a $Nil n/a 
Deficit n/a $(163,614) n/a $(204,456) n/a  n/a 
Total 
Capitalization 

n/a $119,977 n/a $649,535 n/a  n/a 

 
9. Options to Purchase Securities 
 
9.1 State, in tabular form, as at a specified date not more than 30 days before the 

date of the Listing Statement, information as to options to purchase securities of 
the Issuer or a subsidiary of the Issuer that are held by: 

 
(a) all executive officers and past executive officers of the Issuer as a group 

and all directors and past directors of the Issuer who are not also 
executive officers as a group, indicating the aggregate number of 
executive officers and the aggregate number of directors to whom the 
information applies, without naming them; 

 
(b) all executive officers and past executive officers of all subsidiaries of the 

Issuer as a group and all directors and past directors of those subsidiaries 
who are not also executive officers of the subsidiary as a group, in each 
case, without naming them and excluding individuals referred to in 
paragraph (a), indicating the aggregate number of executive officers and 
the aggregate number of directors to whom the information applies; 

 
(c) all other employees and past employees of the Issuer as a group, without 

naming them; 
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(d) all other employees and past employees of subsidiaries of the Issuer as a 

group, without naming them;  
 
(e) all consultants of the Issuer as a group, without naming them; and 
 
(f) any other person or company, including the underwriter, naming each 

person or company. 
 

Stock Option Plan 

The Company has adopted a Stock Option Plan (the “Stock Option Plan”) under which it may 
grant incentive stock options to its directors, officers, employees and consultants or any affiliate 
thereof.  

The purpose of the Stock Option Plan is to allow the Company to grant options to: (i) provide 
additional incentive and compensation, (ii) provide an opportunity to participate in the 
Company’s success; and (iii) align the interests of option holders with those of the Company’s 
shareholders. 
 
The material terms of the Stock Option Plan are as follows: 

 
 The maximum number of shares issuable is 10% of the Company’s issued and outstanding 

shares on each grant date, inclusive of all shares currently reserved for issuance pursuant to 
previously granted stock options. 

 
 The term of any options will be fixed by the Company’s directors at the grant date to a 

maximum term of ten years.  
 
 The exercise price of any options will be determined by the Company’s directors, but shall 

not be lower than the greater of the closing price of the Company’s shares on (a) the trading 
day immediately prior to the grant date, and (b) the date of grant of the stock options. 

 
 All options will be non-assignable and non-transferable. 
 
 Options to acquire not more than (i) 5% of the issued and outstanding shares may be granted 

to any one individual in any 12 month period; (ii) 2% of the issued and outstanding shares 
may be granted to any one consultant; and (iii) 1% of the issued and outstanding shares may 
be granted to all providers of investor relations activities, in any 12 month period. 

 
 Options granted to persons providing investor relations activities shall vest in stages over 12 

months with no more than ¼ of the options vesting in any three-month period.   
 
 Vesting requirements with respect to options other than those granted to persons providing 

investor relations activities may be imposed by the Company’s directors; and a four-month 
hold period will apply to all shares issued on the exercise of an option, commencing from 
the grant date.  

 
 If the option holder ceases to be an employee of the Company (other than by reason of 

death), then the option will expire on a date as determined by the directors at the time of the 
grant but no later than 90 days following the date that the option holder ceases to be an 
employee and no later than 30 days if the option holder was en employee engaged in 
investor relations activities. 
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 If the option holder ceases to be director or consultant of the Company (other than by reason 

of death), then the option will expire within a reasonable period following the date that the 
option holder ceases to be a director or consultant. 

 
 The terms of an option may not be amended once issued.  If an option is cancelled prior to 

its expiry date, we must post notice of the cancellation with the CSE and shall not grant new 
options to the same person until 30 days have elapsed from the date of cancellation. 

 
 Options will be reclassified in the event of any consolidation, subdivision, conversion or 

exchange of the Company’s shares. 
 

Options to Purchase Securities 
 
As at the date of this Listing Statement, a total of 350,000 incentive stock options were 
outstanding exercisable at a price of $0.05 per share on or before February 4, 2016 as follows: 

 

Type of Optionee 
Number of 
Optionees 

Aggregate 
Number of 

Options 
Executive officers and past executive officers of the Issuer 2 200,000 
Directors and past directors of the Issuer 2 150,000 
Executive officers and past executive officers of subsidiaries 
of the Issuer 

Nil Nil 

Directors and past directors of subsidiaries of the Issuer Nil Nil 
Employees and past employees of the Issuer Nil Nil 
Employees and past employees of subsidiaries of the Issuer Nil Nil 
Consultants of the Issuer Nil Nil 
Any other person  Nil Nil 

  
10. Description of the Securities 
 
10.1 General - State the description or the designation of each class of equity 

securities and describe all material attributes and characteristics, including: 
 

a) dividend rights; 

b) voting rights; 

c) rights upon dissolution or winding-up; 

d) pre-emptive rights; 

e) conversion or exchange rights; 

f) redemption, retraction, purchase for cancellation or surrender provisions, 

g) sinking or purchase fund provisions; 

h) provisions permitting or restricting the issuance of additional securities and 
any other material restrictions; and 



- 31 - 

 
FORM 2A – LISTING STATEMENT 

July 6, 2010 

 
i) provisions requiring a securityholder to contribute additional capital. 

Common Shares 
 
The Company has one class of shares outstanding: common shares. The Company is authorized 
to issue an unlimited number of common shares without par value. As at the date of this Listing 
Statement, we had a total of 10,760,000 common shares issued and outstanding.  Upon 
completion of the proposed Acquisition, 48,200,000 common shares will be issued and 
outstanding. 
 
All of the common shares of the Company rank equally as to voting rights, participation in a 
distribution of the assets of the Company on a liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the 
Company and the entitlement to dividends. The holders of the common shares are entitled to 
receive notice of all meetings of shareholders and to attend and vote the shares at the meetings. 
Each common share carries with it the right to one vote.   
 
In the event of the liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company or other distribution of 
its assets, the holders of the common shares will be entitled to receive, on a pro rata basis, all of 
the assets remaining after the Company has paid out its liabilities. Distribution in the form of 
dividends, if any, will be set by the board of directors. 

 
Preferred Shares 
 
The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of preferred shares without par value. 
The Board of Directors may issue such preferred shares in one or more series, determine the 
maximum number of shares of that series that the Company is authorized to issue, create an 
identifying name for the shares of that series and attach special rights or restrictions to the shares 
of that series.  Except for such rights relating to the election of directors on a default in payment 
of dividends as may be attached to any series of preferred shares, holders of preferred shares shall 
not be entitled, as such, to receive notice of, or to attend or vote at, any general meeting of 
shareholders of the Company.  No preferred shares have been issued by the Company. 

 
10.2 Debt securities - If debt securities are being listed, describe all material attributes 

and characteristics of the indebtedness and the security, if any, for the debt, 
including: 

 
(a) provisions for interest rate, maturity and premium, if any; 

 
(b) conversion or exchange rights; 

 
(c) redemption, retraction, purchase for cancellation or surrender provisions, 

 
(d) sinking or purchase fund provisions; 

 
(e) the nature and priority of any security for the debt securities, briefly 

identifying the principal properties subject to lien or charge; 
 

(f) provisions permitting or restricting the issuance of additional securities, the 
incurring of additional indebtedness and other material negative 
covenants, including restrictions against payment of dividends and 
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restrictions against giving security on the assets of the Issuer or its 
subsidiaries, and provisions as to the release or substitution of assets 
securing the debt securities; 

 
(g) the name of the trustee under any indenture relating to the Issuer and 

 
(h) any financial arrangements between the Issuer and any of its affiliates or 

among its affiliates that could affect the security for the indebtedness. 
 
 N/A. 
 
10.4 Other securities - If securities other than equity securities or debt securities are 

being listed, describe fully the material attributes and characteristics of those 
securities. 
 
N/A. 
 

10.5 Modification of terms: 
 

(a) describe provisions about the modification, amendment or variation of any 
rights attached to the securities being listed; and 

 
 N/A. 
 

(b) if the rights of holders of securities may be modified otherwise than in 
accordance with the provisions attached to the securities or the provisions 
of the governing statute relating to the securities, explain briefly. 

 N/A. 

10.6 Other attributes: 

(a) if the rights attaching to the securities being listed are materially limited 
or qualified by the rights of any other class of securities, or if any other 
class of securities ranks ahead of or equally with the securities being 
listed, include information about the other securities that will enable 
investors to understand the rights attaching to the securities being listed; 
and 

 
N/A. 
 
(b) if securities of the class being listed may be partially redeemed or 

repurchased, state the manner of selecting the securities to be redeemed 
or repurchased. 

 
Subject to the special rights and restrictions attached to the shares of any class or series and the 
Business Corporations Act, and provided the Company is not insolvent or making the payment or 
providing the consideration would not render the Company insolvent, the Company may, if 
authorized by the directors, purchase or otherwise acquire any of its shares at the price and upon 
the terms determined by the directors. 
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10.7 Prior Sales - State the prices at which securities of the same class as the 
securities to be listed have been sold within the 12 months before the date of the 
Listing Statement, or are to be sold, by the Issuer or any Related Person and the 
number of securities of the class sold or to be sold at each price. 

 
The following table outlines the number and prices at which our securities have been sold within 
the last 12 months before the date of this Listing Statement: 
 

Date Number and Class of Securities Price per 
Security 

Total Cash 
Consideration 

March 19, 2014 3,200,000 common shares $0.10 $320,000 
March 31, 2014 1,550,000 common shares $0.20 $310,000 

 
10.8 Stock Exchange Price: 
 

a) if shares of the same class as the shares to be listed were or are listed on 
a Canadian stock exchange or traded on a Canadian market, provide the 
price ranges and volume traded on the Canadian stock exchange or 
market on which the greatest volume of trading generally occurs; 

 
b) if shares of the same class as the shares to be listed were or are not listed 

on a Canadian stock exchange or traded on a Canadian market, provide 
the price ranges and volume traded on the foreign stock exchange or 
market on which the greatest volume of trading generally occurs; and 

 
c) information is to be provided on a monthly basis for each month or, if 

applicable, part month, of the current quarter and the immediately 
preceding quarter and on a quarterly basis for the next preceding seven 
quarters. 

 
The following table provides information with respect to the Company’s trading 
history on the CSE since its listing on October 15, 2012 up until the date of this 
Listing Statement: 

 

Period 
Price Range ($) 

Volume Low High 
June 2014 0.40 0.48 1,550 
May 2014 0.40 0.50 47,700 
April 2014 0.25 0.50 200,000 
March 2014 0.05 0.345 98,300 
February 2014 - - Nil 
January 2014 - - Nil 
October – December 2013 - - Nil 
July - September 2013 - - Nil 
April - June 2013 - - Nil 
January – March 2013 0.05 0.05 500 
October 15 – December 31, 2012 - - Nil 
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11. Escrowed Securities 
 
11.1 State as of a specified date within 30 days before the date of the Listing 

Statement, in substantially the following tabular form, the number of securities of 
each class of securities of the Issuer held, to the knowledge of the Issuer, in 
escrow (which, for the purposes of this Form includes any securities subject to a 
pooling agreement) and the percentage that number represents of the 
outstanding securities of that class. In a note to the table, disclose the name of 
the depository, if any, and the date of and conditions governing the release of the 
securities from escrow. 

 
 The following table sets out the number of common shares of the Company that are being held in 

escrow as at the date of this Listing Statement: 
 

Designation of class 
Number of securities 

held in escrow(1) Percentage of class  
Common shares 855,000 14.23% 

  (1)  The depository is Equity Financial Trust Company (“Equity”) and the shares are held in 
escrow pursuant to an Escrow Agreement dated July 19, 2012, between the Issuer, Equity 
and the shareholders. As the Issuer is considered an ‘emerging issuer’ as that term is 
defined under the Escrow Policy, the escrowed securities are being released according to 
the following schedule: 

 
On the date the Issuer’s securities are listed on 
a Canadian exchange (the listing date) 

1/10 of the escrowed securities, subject to the 
issuance of the License 

6 months after the listing date  1/6 of the remaining escrowed securities 
12 months after the listing date  1/5 of the remaining escrowed securities 
18 months after the listing date  1/4 of the remaining escrowed securities 
24 months after the listing date  1/3 of the remaining escrowed securities 
30 months after the listing date  1/2 of the remaining escrowed securities 
36 months after the listing date the remaining escrowed securities 

 
*  In the simplest case, where there are no changes to the escrow securities initially deposited and no 

additional escrow securities, the release schedule outlined above results in the escrow securities 
being released in equal tranches of 15% after completion of the release on the listing date. 

  
 The following table sets out the number of common shares of the Company that will be held in 

escrow upon completion of the proposed Acquisition:  
 

Designation of class 
Number of securities 

held in escrow(1) Percentage of class  
Common shares 38,295,000 79.45% 

  (1)  See note (1) to the previous table above for particulars with respect to the original 855,000 
common shares held in escrow. 

  With respect to the 36,000,000 common shares (the “Acquisition Shares”) that are to be 
issued as part of the Acquisition, the depository will be Equity and the shares will be held 
in escrow pursuant to an escrow agreement yet to be dated, between the Issuer, Equity and 
the shareholders. As the Issuer is considered an ‘emerging issuer’ as that term is defined 
under the Escrow Policy, the escrowed securities are being released according to the 
following schedule: 
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On the date the Acquisition Shares are listed 
on a Canadian exchange (the listing date) 

1/10 of the escrowed securities, subject to the 
issuance of the License 

6 months after the listing date  1/6 of the remaining escrowed securities 
12 months after the listing date  1/5 of the remaining escrowed securities 
18 months after the listing date  1/4 of the remaining escrowed securities 
24 months after the listing date  1/3 of the remaining escrowed securities 
30 months after the listing date  1/2 of the remaining escrowed securities 
36 months after the listing date the remaining escrowed securities 

*  In the simplest case, where there are no changes to the escrow securities initially deposited and no 
additional escrow securities, the release schedule outlined above results in the escrow securities 
being released in equal tranches of 15% after completion of the release on the listing date. 

Any Acquisition Shares released from escrow in accordance with the above schedule will 
not released by Equity for delivery to the shareholders until Equity has received written 
confirmation from the Issuer that the Issuer has received all approvals needed to produce 
Medical Marijuana in its premises (the “Premises”) including: 
 
(1) the renewal of the lease of the Premises for a period of not less than 2 years; 
(2)  the issuance of the Medical Marijuana Production License from Health Canada; and 
(3)  the approval of the municipality of Delta that the Issuer may produce Medical 

Marijuana in the Premises. 
 
With respect to the 1,440,000 common shares (the “Finder’s Fee Shares”) that are to be 
issued as part of the Acquisition, the depository will be Equity and the shares will be held 
in escrow pursuant to a performance escrow agreement yet to be dated, between the Issuer, 
Equity and the shareholders.  The Finder’s Fee Shares will be released from escrow upon the 
completion by the Issuer of cumulative financings of not less than $1.5 million dollars. 

  
12. Principal Shareholders  
 
12.1 (1) Provide the following information for each principal shareholder of the 

Issuer as of a specified date not more than 30 days before the date of the 
Listing Statement: 

 
(a) Name; 

 
(b) The number or amount of securities owned of the class to be listed; 

 
(c) Whether the securities referred to in subsection 12(1)(b) are owned 

both of record and beneficially, of record only, or beneficially only; 
and 

 
(d) The percentages of each class of securities known by the Issuer to 

be owned. 
 

 As at the date of this Listing Statement 

Name of Principal 
Shareholder 

Number and class of securities 
beneficially owned directly or 

indirectly 
Percentage of 
class owned 

Derek Good 2,200,000 common shares 20.0% 
Martin Cotter 1,600,000 common shares 14.9% 
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(2) If the Issuer is requalifying following a fundamental change or has 
proposed an acquisition, amalgamation, merger, reorganization or 
arrangement, indicate, to the extent known, the holding of each person of 
company described in paragraph (1) that will exist after giving effect to the 
transaction. 

  
 Upon completion of the Acquisition 

Name of Principal 
Shareholder 

Number and class of 
securities beneficially 

owned directly or indirectly 
Percentage of class 

owned 
Derek Good 13,000,000 common shares 27.0%(1) 

Pencho Todorov Batanov 10,800,000 common shares 22.4%(2) 

Ivan Valentinov Miliovski 10,800,000 common shares 22.4%(3) 

 (1) 26.8% based on a fully-diluted share capital of 48,550,000 common shares following the 
Acquisition. 

(2) 22.2% based on a fully-diluted share capital of 48,550,000 common shares following the 
Acquisition. 

(3) 22.2% based on a fully-diluted share capital of 48,550,000 common shares following the 
Acquisition. 

 
(3) If, to the knowledge of the Issuer, more than 10 per cent of any class of 

voting securities of the Issuer is held, or is to be held, subject to any voting 
trust or other similar agreement, disclose, to the extent known, the 
designation of the securities, the number or amount of the securities held 
or to be held subject to the agreement and the duration of the agreement.  
State the names and addresses of the voting trustees and outline briefly 
their voting rights and other powers under the agreement. 

 
  N/A. 
 

(4) If, to the knowledge of the Issuer, any principal shareholder is an associate 
or affiliate of another person or company named as a principal 
shareholder, disclose, to the extent known, the material facts of the 
relationship, including any basis for influence over the Issuer held by the 
person or company other than the holding of voting securities of the 
Issuer. 

 
 N/A. 
 
(5) In addition to the above, include in a footnote to the table, the required 

calculation(s) on a fully-diluted basis. 
 
  See footnotes to the table.  
 
13. Directors and Officers 
 
13.1 List the name and municipality of residence of each director and executive officer 

of the Issuer and indicate their respective positions and offices held with the 
Issuer and their respective principal occupations within the five preceding years. 

 



- 37 - 

 
FORM 2A – LISTING STATEMENT 

July 6, 2010 

To the knowledge of the Company, the following table sets out information regarding each of our 
directors and executive officers, including the names, municipality of residence, the position and 
office held and the period of time served in this position, their principal occupation for the 
preceding five years, and the number and percentage of voting securities beneficially owned, 
directly or indirectly, or over which control or direction is exercised, upon Closing of the 
Acquisition: 

 
Name, Province of 
State and Country of 
Residence and 
Position(s) held Principal occupations within the five preceding years 
Otto Folprecht 
BC, Canada 
President, CEO and 
Director 
 

Senior Project Manager, Strategic Information Group 2012; Senior Information 
Technology & Database Expert, Eurecna, 2011; Chief Operating Officer, Albi 
Naturals Inc., 2010 to 2011; Vice President, Sunvim Bioscience Inc., 2008 to 
2010; Partner, Delta Pacific Group, 2008 to November 2009. 

Brian Gusko  
BC, Canada 
Director and CFO 

Businessman; Director, Newnote Financial Corp. (formerly Winrock Resources 
Inc.) since March 18, 2014; Director, Robix Alternative Fuels, Inc. since 
February 2014; Director, Lomiko Metals Inc. since October 2012; Media 
Relations, MicroCoal Technologies Inc. since July 2011; Partner, Sustainable 
Capital Corporation, a capital markets advisory firm, since January 2011; 
Director, Emergent Waste Solutions Inc., a private Canadian company, since 
2011; CEO, Emergent Energy Canada Corp., a private Canadian company, since 
August 2009; Director of Environmental Sciences, Northern Canadian Supplies 
Ltd., a private First Nations owned cleaning and safety supply company, since 
February 2007; CFO, Solegear Bioplastics Inc., February 2011 to September 
2011; Director, Grenville Gold Corporation, November 2008 to November 2010; 
Investor Relations, Naturally Advanced Technologies Inc., 1995 to 2010; CFO, 
UC Resources Ltd., August 2007 to July 2009;  

Ivan Miliovski 
BC, Canada 
Director 

Chief Operating Officer, VIP – Vodis Innovative Pharmaceuticals Ltd. since 
August 2013; President, VIP – Vancouver Independent Producers since January 
2010;  

 
13.2 State the period or periods during which each director has served as a director 

and when his or her term of office will expire. 
 

Director Period served as a Director 
Otto Folprecht Upon Closing of Acquisition 
Brian Gusko Upon Closing of Acquisition 
Ivan Miliovski Upon Closing of Acquisition 

 
 Directors hold office until the next annual meeting of shareholders or until their successors are 

appointed. 
 
13.3 State the number and percentage of securities of each class of voting securities 

of the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, or 
over which control or direction is exercised by all directors and executive officers 
of the Issuer as a group. 

  
 15,120,000(1) common shares (31.4%) will be held by all directors and executive officers of the 

Issuer as a group upon completion of the Acquisition. 
 
 (1)  Based on information provided to the Company by the directors and based on 48,200,000 common 

shares issued and outstanding on completion of the Acquisition. 
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13.4 Disclose the board committees of the Issuer and identify the members of each 
committee. 

 
Upon Closing of the Acquisition the Issuer will have one board committee, the Audit Committee, 
comprised of Otto Folprecht, Brian Gusko and Ivan Miliovski. 

 
13.5 If the principal occupation of a director or officer of the Issuer is acting as an 

officer of a person or company other than the Issuer, disclose the fact and state 
the principal business of the person or company. 

 
See section 13.1. 

 
13.6 Disclose if a director or officer of the Issuer or a shareholder holding a sufficient 

number of securities of the Issuer to affect materially the control of the Issuer, is, 
or within 10 years before the date of the Listing Statement has been, a director or 
officer of any other Issuer that, while that person was acting in that capacity: 

 
(a) was the subject of a cease trade or similar order, or an order that denied 

the other Issuer access to any exemptions under Ontario securities law, 
for a period of more than 30 consecutive days, state the fact and describe 
the basis on which the order was made and whether the order is still in 
effect; 

 
(b) was subject to an event that resulted, after the director or executive officer 

ceased to be a director or executive officer, in the company being the 
subject of a cease trade or similar order or an order that denied the 
relevant company access to any exemption under securities legislation, for 
a period of more than 30 consecutive days, state the fact and describe the 
basis on which the order was made and whether the order is still in effect; 

 
(c) became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to 

bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, 
arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver 
manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets, state the fact; or 

 
(d) within a year of that person ceasing to act in that capacity, became 

bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or 
insolvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or 
compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee 
appointed to hold its assets, state the fact. 

 
Except for as disclosed herein, to the knowledge of the Issuer, none of the Issuer’s directors, 
officers or principal shareholders upon Closing of the Acquisition are, or have been within the 
last 10 years, directors or officers of any other issuer that, while that person was acting in that 
capacity, was the subject of a cease trade or similar order or an order that denied the issuer access 
to any statutory exemptions for a period of more than 30 consecutive days or became bankrupt, 
made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or 
instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver 
manager or trustee appointed to hold the assets of that issuer. 
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13.7 Describe the penalties or sanctions imposed and the grounds on which they were 
imposed or the terms of the settlement agreement and the circumstances that 
gave rise to the settlement agreement, if a director or officer of the Issuer, or a 
shareholder holding sufficient securities of the Issuer to affect materially the 
control of the Issuer, has: 

 
(a) been subject to any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to 

Canadian securities legislation or by a Canadian securities regulatory 
authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a Canadian 
securities regulatory authority; or 

 
(b) been subject to any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or 

regulatory body that would be likely to be considered important to a 
reasonable investor making an investment decision. 

 
To the knowledge of the Company, none of the Company’s directors, officers or principal 
shareholders on Closing of the Acquisition are, or have been within the last 10 years, the subject 
of any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to Canadian securities legislation or by a 
Canadian securities regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a 
Canadian securities regulatory authority or been subject to any other penalties or sanctions 
imposed by a court or regulatory body that would be likely to be considered important to a 
reasonable investor making an investment decision. 

 
13.8 Despite section 13.7, no disclosure is required of a settlement agreement 

entered into before December 31, 2000 unless the disclosure would likely be 
important to a reasonable investor in making an investment decision. 

 
13.9 If a director or officer of the Issuer, or a shareholder holding sufficient securities 

of the Issuer to affect materially the control of the Issuer, or a personal holding 
company of any such persons has, within the 10 years before the date of the 
Listing Statement, become bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation 
relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or been subject to or instituted any 
proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, 
receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold the assets of the director or officer, 
state the fact. 

 
 To the knowledge of the Company, none of the Company’s directors, officers or principal 

shareholders on Closing of the Acquisition, or any personal holding company of such persons, 
has, within the last 10 years, become bankrupt or made a proposal under any legislation relating 
to bankruptcy or insolvency or been subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or 
compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold his, 
her or its assets. 

 
13.10 Disclose particulars of existing or potential material conflicts of interest between 

the Issuer or a subsidiary of the Issuer and a director or officer of the Issuer or a 
subsidiary of the Issuer. 

 
The directors of the Company are required by law to act honestly and in good faith with a view to 
the best interests of the Company and to disclose any interests, which they may have in any 
project or opportunity of the Company. If a conflict of interest arises at a meeting of the board of 
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directors, any director in a conflict will disclose his interest and abstain from voting on such 
matter. 
 
To the best of the Company's knowledge, and other than disclosed herein, there are no known 
existing or potential conflicts of interest between the Company and its directors and officers on 
Closing of the Acquisition except that certain of the directors and officers may serve as directors 
and/or officers of other companies, and therefore it is possible that a conflict may arise between 
their duties to the Company and their duties as a director or officer of such other companies. 

 
13.11 Management — In addition to the above provide the following information for 

each member of management: 
 

(a) state the individual's name, age, position and responsibilities with the 
Issuer and relevant educational background; 

 
(b) state whether the individual works full time for the Issuer or what 

proportion of the individual's time will be devoted to the Issuer; 
 

(c) state whether the individual is an employee or independent contractor of 
the Issuer; 

 
(d) state the individual's principal occupations or employment during the five 

years prior to the date of the Listing Statement, disclosing with respect to 
each organization as of the time such occupation or employment was 
carried on: 

 
(i) its name and principal business, 

 
(ii) if applicable, that the organization was an affiliate of the Issuer, 

 
(iii) positions held by the individual, and 

 
(iv) whether it is still carrying on business, if known to the individual; 

 
(e) describe the individual's experience in the Issuer's industry; and 

 
(f) state whether the individual has entered into a non-competition or non-

disclosure agreement with the Issuer. 
 

Otto Folprecht, age 51, will be appointed a director, President and CEO of the Company upon 

Closing of the Acquisition.  Mr. Folprecht studied Business at Harvard. He was a Senior Project 

Manager at Strategic Information Group since 2012 where he successfully managed full-scale 

implementations of ERP (enterprise resources planning) platforms in the auto industry, food and 

beverage industry, pharmaceutical, mining and metals industry.  From 2010 to 2011 Mr. 

Folprecht was Chief Operating Officer of Albi Naturals Inc., one of the oldest brands in dietary 

supplements with over 150 different products.  From 2008 to 2010 Mr. Folprecht was Vice 

President at Sumvin Bioscience Inc. where he was recruited to run distribution strategy for North 

America.  
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Mr. Folprecht provides his services to the Company as an employee. Mr. Folprecht will be 
devoting about 100% of his business time to the affairs of the Company. Mr. Folprecht has 
entered into a non-competition or a non-disclosure agreement with the Company. 
 
Brian Gusko, age 48, will be appointed a director and CFO of the Company upon Closing of the 

Acquisition.  Mr. Gusko is a businessman and holds an MBA in finance and marketing from the 
University of Calgary.  Mr. Gusko has been a partner of Sustainable Capital Corporation, a 
capital markets advisory firm, since January 2011 and Director of Environmental Sciences of 
Northern Canadian Supplies Ltd., a private First Nations owned cleaning and safety supply 
company, since February 2007.  Mr. Gusko currently serves on the Board of Directors of public 
companies Newnote Financial Corp. (formerly Winrock Resources Inc.), Robix Alternative Fuels, 
Inc. and Lomiko Metals Inc., is CEO of Emergent Energy Canada Corp., a private Canadian 
company, and a director of Emergent Waste Solutions Inc., a private Canadian company.  Mr. 
Gusko was CFO of Solegear Bioplastics Inc. from February 2011 to September 2011 and of UC 
Resources Ltd. from August 2007 to July 2009.  Mr. Gusko was a co-founder of two junior 
mining companies that subsequently went public (Regal Resources and First Mexican Gold).  Mr. 
Gukso provided investor relations services to Naturally Advanced Technologies Inc. from 1995 
to 2010.  
 
Mr. Gusko provides his services to the Company as an independent contractor. Mr. Gusko will be 
devoting about 30% of his business time to the affairs of the Company. Mr. Gusko has not 
entered into a non-competition or a non-disclosure agreement with the Company. 
 
Ivan Miliovski, age 32, will be appointed a director of the Company on completion of the 
Acquisition. Mr. Miliovski has been Chief Operating Officer of VIP – Vodis Innovative 
Pharmaceuticals Ltd. since August 2013 and President of VIP – Vancouver Independent Producers since 
January 2010,  Mr. Miliovski studied Environmental Studies at Simon Fraser University. 
  
Mr. Miliovski provides his services to the Company as an employee. Mr. Miliovski will be 
devoting about 100% of his business time to the affairs of the Company. Mr. Miliovski has 
entered into a non-competition or a non-disclosure agreement with the Company. 
 

14. Capitalization 
 
14.1 Prepare and file the following chart for each class of securities to be listed:  
 
Issued Capital On Completion of the Acquisition 
 
 Number of 

Securities 
(non-
diluted) 

Number of 
Securities 
(fully-
diluted) 

% of 
Issued 
(non-
diluted) 

% of 
Issued  
(fully 
diluted) 

Public Float 
 

 
 

   

Total outstanding (A)  48,200,000 48,550,000 100% 100% 
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 Number of 
Securities 
(non-
diluted) 

Number of 
Securities 
(fully-
diluted) 

% of 
Issued 
(non-
diluted) 

% of 
Issued  
(fully 
diluted) 

Held by Related Persons or 
employees of the Issuer or 
Related Person of the Issuer, or 
by persons or companies who 
beneficially own or control, directly 
or indirectly, more than a 5% 
voting position in the Issuer (or 
who would beneficially own or 
control, directly or indirectly, more 
than a 5% voting position in the 
Issuer upon exercise or 
conversion of other securities 
held) (B) 38,920,000 38,920,000 80.7% 80.2% 
     
Total Public Float (A-B) 9,280,000 9,630,000 19.3% 19.8% 
     
Freely-Tradeable Float 
 

    

Number of outstanding securities 
subject to resale restrictions, 
including restrictions imposed by 
pooling or other arrangements or 
in a shareholder agreement and 
securities held by control block 
holders (C)  42,325,000 42,325,000 87.8% 87.2% 
     
Total Tradeable Float (A-C) 5,155,000 5,505,000 12.2% 12.8% 
 
 
Public Securityholders (Registered) 
 

Instruction: For the purposes of this report, "public securityholders" are persons 
other than persons enumerated in section (B) of the previous chart. List 
registered holders only. 

Class of Security 
 

    

Size of Holding   Number of 
holders 

 Total number of 
securities 

     
1 – 99 securities     
     
100 – 499 securities     
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Class of Security 
 

    

Size of Holding   Number of 
holders 

 Total number of 
securities 

500 – 999 securities  217  108,500 
     
1,000 – 1,999 securities     
     
2,000 – 2,999 securities  1  2,000 
     
3,000 – 3,999 securities  1  3,000 
     
4,000 – 4,999 securities     
     
5,000 or more securities  24  5,041,500 
     
  243  5,155,000 

 
Public Securityholders (Beneficial) 
 

Instruction: Include (i) beneficial holders holding securities in their own name as 
registered shareholders; and (ii) beneficial holders holding securities through an 
intermediary where the Issuer has been given written confirmation of 
shareholdings. For the purposes of this section, it is sufficient if the intermediary 
provides a breakdown by number of beneficial holders for each line item below; 
names and holdings of specific beneficial holders do not have to be disclosed. If 
an intermediary or intermediaries will not provide details of beneficial holders, 
give the aggregate position of all such intermediaries in the last line. 
 

Class of Security 
 

    

Size of Holding   Number of 
holders 

 Total number of 
securities 

     
1 – 99 securities     
     
100 – 499 securities     
     
500 – 999 securities  217  108,500 
     
1,000 – 1,999 securities     
     
2,000 – 2,999 securities  1  2,000 
     
3,000 – 3,999 securities  1  3,000 
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Class of Security 
 

    

Size of Holding   Number of 
holders 

 Total number of 
securities 

4,000 – 4,999 securities     
     
5,000 or more  securities  24  5,041,500 
     
Unable to confirm     
     
  243  5,041,500 

 
Non-Public Securityholders (Registered) 
 

Instruction: For the purposes of this report, "non-public securityholders" are 
persons enumerated in section (B) of the issued capital chart.  
 

Class of Security 
 

    

Size of Holding   Number of 
holders 

 Total number of 
securities 

     
1 – 99 securities  Nil  Nil 
     
100 – 499 securities  Nil  Nil 
     
500 – 999 securities  Nil  Nil 
     
1,000 – 1,999 securities  Nil  Nil 
     
2,000 – 2,999 securities  Nil  Nil 
     
3,000 – 3,999 securities  Nil  Nil 
     
4,000 – 4,999 securities  Nil  Nil 
     
5,000 or more  securities  4  38,920,000 
     
  4  38,920,000 

 
 
14.2 Provide the following details for any securities convertible or exchangeable into 

any class of listed securities 
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Description of Security 
(include conversion /  
exercise terms, including 
conversion / exercise price) 

Number of convertible / 
exchangeable securities 
outstanding 

Number of listed securities 
issuable upon conversion / 
exercise 

Stock options exercisable at 
$0.05 per share on or before 
February 4, 2016. 

350,000 
 

350,000 

 
14.3 Provide details of any listed securities reserved for issuance that are not included 

in section 14.2. 
  
 N/A. 
 
15. Executive Compensation 
 
15.1 Attach a Statement of Executive Compensation from Form 51-102F6 or any 

successor instrument and describe any intention to make any material changes 
to that compensation. 

 
Compensation Discussion and Analysis 
 
“NEO” or “Named Executive Officer” means each of the following individuals:  

 
(a)  the Company’s chief executive officer (“CEO”); 
(b)  the Company’s chief financial officer (“CFO”);  
(c)  each of the three most highly compensated executive officers of the Company, including 

any of its subsidiaries, or the three most highly compensated individuals acting in a 
similar capacity, other than the CEO and CFO, at the end of the most recently completed 
financial year whose total compensation was, individually, more than $150,000 for that 
financial year; and 

(d)  each individual who would be an NEO under paragraph (c) but for the fact that the 
individual was neither an executive officer of the Company or its subsidiaries, nor acting 
in a similar capacity, at the end of that financial year; 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 the Company had two NEOs, namely, its president and CEO, 
Mr. Cotter, who was appointed on March 2, 2012, and Mr. Willoughby, the Company’s CFO, who was 
appointed on March 5, 2012.   

Cash compensation amounts to executive officers are determined solely by board discussion without any 
formal objectives, criteria or analysis. Option based awards to executive officers are determined by the 
board which considers both the past and future expected contributions of the individual officers, previous 
grants of stock options, and the number of available stock options.  
 

Summary Compensation Table 

The following table sets out all compensation awarded to, earned by or paid to the Named Executive 
Officers for the financial year ended June 30, 2013 and the period from incorporation on October 31, 
2011 to June 30, 2012, being the only two completed fiscal years of the Company. No other executive 
officer’s total salary and bonus during such periods exceeded $150,000. 
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(1) Financial Year ended June 30. 
(2) Value of option-based awards calculated using Black-Scholes model. 

 
Incentive Plan Awards 
 
Management of the Company believes that awards of equity in the Company serve an important function 
in furnishing directors, officers, employees and consultants (collectively the “Eligible Parties”) of the 
Company an opportunity to invest in the Company in a simple and effective manner and better aligning 
the interests of the Eligible Parties with those of the Company and its shareholders through ownership of 
shares in the Company.  

The following table sets out all stock options and share based awards granted or awarded to, earned by or 
paid to the Named Executive Officers that are outstanding at the end of the most recently completed 
financial year.  
 

 Option-based Awards Share-based Awards 
Name 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(a) 

Number of 
securities 

underlying 
unexercised 

options 
(#) 

 
 

(b) 

Option 
exercise 

price 
($) 

 
 
 
 

(c) 

Option 
expiration 

date 
 
 
 
 
 

(d) 

Value of 
unexercised 

in-the-
money 
options 

($) 
 
 

(e) 

Number of 
shares or 
units of 

shares that 
have not 
vested 

(#) 
 

(f) 

Market or 
payout value 

of share-
based awards 
that have not 

vested 
($) 

 
(g) 

Market or 
payout value 

of vested 
share-based 
awards not 
paid out or 
distributed 

($) 
(h) 

CEO: Martin 
Cotter 100,000 $0.05 Feb. 4/16 Nil Nil Nil Nil 

CFO: Donald 
Willoughby 100,000 $0.05 Feb 4/16 Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 
Incentive plan awards – value vested or earned during the year 
 
The following table sets out the value of option or stock based awards that vested during the most recently 
completed financial year and the value of non-equity incentive plan compensation earned during the most 
recently completed financial year for each NEO.  
 

Name and 
principal 
position 

 
(a) 

Year(1) 
 

(b) 

Salary 
($) 

 
(c) 

Share-
based 

awards 
($) 

 
(d) 

Option-
based 

awards(2) 
($) 

 
(e) 

Non-equity 
incentive plan 
compensation 

($) 
 

(f) 

Pension 
value 

($) 
 

(g) 

All other 
compensation 

($) 
 

(h) 

Total 
compensation 

($) 
 

(i) 

Annual 
incentive 

plans 
 

(f1) 

Long-
term 

incentive 
plans 

 
(f2) 

CEO: Martin 
Cotter 

2013 
2012 

Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 

$2,597 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
$30,000 

$2,597 
$30,000 

CFO: Donald 
Willoughby 

2013 
2012 

Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 

$2,597 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 

$2,597 
Nil 
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Name 
 
 
 
 

(a) 

Option-based awards – 
Value vested during the 

year 
($) 

 
(b) 

Share-based awards – 
Value vested during the 

year 
($) 

 
(c) 

Non-equity incentive plan 
compensation – Value earned 

during the year 
($) 

 
(d) 

CEO: Martin Cotter Nil N/A N/A 
CFO: Donald Willoughby Nil N/A N/A 

 
Termination and Change of Control Benefits  
 
The Company does not have any contract, agreement, plan or arrangement that provides for payments to 
an NEO at, following or in connection with any termination (whether voluntary, involuntary or 
constructive), resignation, retirement, a change in control of the company or a change in an NEO’s 
responsibilities. 
 
Director Compensation Table 

The following table sets out details of compensation provided to the directors for the Company’s most 
recently completed financial year.  
 

Name 
 

(a) 

Fees 
earned 

($) 
 

(b) 

Share-
based 

awards 
($) 

 
(c) 

Option-
based 

awards(1) 
($) 

 
(d) 

Non-equity 
incentive plan 
compensation 

($) 
 

(e) 

Pension 
value 

($) 
 

(f) 

All other 
compensation 

($) 
 

(g) 

Total 
($) 

 
(h) 

Afzaal Pirzada Nil Nil $1,948 Nil Nil $4,700(2) $6,648 
Neal Iverson Nil Nil $1,948 Nil Nil Nil  $1,948 
Martin Cotter Nil Nil $2,597 Nil Nil Nil $2,597 

(1) Value of option-based awards calculated using Black-Scholes model. 
(2) Fees for consulting services provided (see: “Management’s Discussion and Analysis ‘Transactions with 

Related Parties’”). 
 
Narrative Discussion 
 
During the most recently completed fiscal year, there were no arrangements, standard or otherwise, for 
cash or non-cash compensation pursuant to which directors were compensated by the Company for their 
attendance at board meetings or in their capacity as directors.  The directors may be reimbursed for actual 
expenses reasonably incurred in connection with the performance of their duties as directors.   

Share-based awards, option-based awards and non-equity incentive plan compensation 
 
Outstanding share-based awards and option-based awards 

The following table sets out all stock options and share based awards granted or awarded to, earned by or 
paid to the Company’s directors that are outstanding at the end of the most recently completed financial 
year.  
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 Option-based Awards Share-based Awards 
Name 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(a) 

Number of 
securities 

underlying 
unexercised 

options 
(#) 

 
 

(b) 

Option 
exercise 

price 
($) 

 
 
 
 

(c) 

Option 
expiration 

date 
 
 
 
 
 

(d) 

Value of 
unexercised 

in-the-
money 
options 

($) 
 
 

(e) 

Number of 
shares or 
units of 

shares that 
have not 
vested 

(#) 
 

(f) 

Market or 
payout value 

of share-
based awards 
that have not 

vested 
($) 

 
(g) 

Market or 
payout value 

of vested 
share-based 
awards not 
paid out or 
distributed 

($) 
(h) 

Afzaal Pirzada 75,000 $0.05 Feb. 4/16 Nil Nil Nil Nil 
Neal Iverson 75,000 $0.05 Feb 4/16 Nil Nil Nil Nil 
Martin Cotter 100,000 $0.05 Feb 4/16 Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 
Incentive plan awards – value vested or earned during the year 
 
The following table sets out the value of option or stock based awards that vested during the most recently 
completed financial year and the value of non-equity incentive plan compensation earned during the most 
recently completed financial year for each director.  
 

Name 
 
 
 
 

(a) 

Option-based awards – 
Value vested during the 

year(1) 
($) 

 
(b) 

Share-based awards – 
Value vested during the 

year 
($) 

 
(c) 

Non-equity incentive plan 
compensation – Value earned 

during the year 
($) 

 
(d) 

Afzaal Pirzada Nil N/A N/A 
Neal Iverson Nil N/A N/A 
Martin Cotter Nil N/A N/A 

 
Intended Material Changes to Executive Compensation 
 
The Company does not intend to make any material changes to the Company’s executive compensation at 
this time. 
 
16. Indebtedness of Directors and Executive Officers 
 
16.1 Aggregate Indebtedness 
 
 See section 16.2. 
 
16.2 Indebtedness of Directors and Executive Officers under (1) Securities 

Purchase and (2) Other Programs 
 

At no time during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 and at no time from June 30, 2013 to the 
date of this Listing Statement, was a director, executive officer, employee, proposed management 
nominee for election as a director of the Company or any associate of any such director, 
executive officer, or proposed management nominee of the Company or any former director, 
executive officer or employee of the Company or any of its subsidiaries indebted to the Company 
or any of its subsidiaries or was indebted to another entity where such indebtedness is or has been 
the subject of a guarantee, support agreement, letter of credit or other similar arrangement or 
understanding provided by the Company or any of its subsidiaries, other than routine 
indebtedness. 
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17.  Risk Factors 

17.1 Disclose risk factors relating to the Issuer and its business, such as cash flow 
and liquidity problems, if any, experience of management, the general risks 
inherent in the business carried on by the Issuer, environmental and health risks, 
reliance on key personnel, regulatory constraints, economic or political 
conditions and financial history and any other matter that would be likely to 
influence an investor’s decision to purchase securities of the Issuer. 

17.2  If there is a risk that securityholders of the Issuer may become liable to make an 
additional contribution beyond the price of the security, disclose that risk. 

17.3 Describe any risk factors material to the Issuer that a reasonable investor would 
consider relevant to an investment in the securities being listed and that are not 
otherwise described under section 17.1 or 17.2. 

 
There are numerous risks, known and unknown, that may prevent the Company from 
achieving its goals. If any of these risks actually occur, the Company’s business, financial 
condition and results of operations may be materially adversely affected. In such case, the 
trading price of the Company’s common shares could decline and investors could lose all or 
part of their investment. 
 
Grant of License 
 
The Company has applied for a license from Health Canada to become a Licensed Producer 
(“License”) under the Marihuana for Medical Purposes Regulation.  In order to satisfy the 
requirements for the final grant of the License, the Company must complete the milestones set out 
under section 4 to the satisfaction of Health Canada. The completion of these milestones may take 
longer than planned and cost more than the amount the Company has budgeted. In addition, there 
is no assurance that the Company will be granted the License and this would materially adversely 
affect the Company’s operations and the Company would need to revise its business plan 
accordingly. 
 
License Requirements 
 
The Office of Controlled Substances of Health Canada (`OCS Health Canada`) issued a guidance 
document on June 19, 2013 regarding the completion of an application to become a Licensed 
Producer under MMPR (“Producer”). 
 
A Producer must: 
1. submit an application in the required form with all sections completed. 
2. obtain Security Clearance for all senior and responsible individuals involved with the 

Company and who will work at the proposed site. 
3. the proposed site for operations must be located in indoors, be used exclusively by the 

Producer and comply with all the technical details of the Production Security and the 
Physical Security directives stipulated under the requirements of MMPR. This includes 
requirements such as constant visual monitoring and recording, perimeter security and 
access control, and intrusion detection, monitoring and reporting. 

4. contact and notify the local police force, fire authority and government of the Producer’s 
intention to submit an application. 

5. identify and submit documentation attesting to the training, experience and technical 
knowledge of the person designated to assure the quality of the dried marijuana before it 
is made available for sale. 
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6. provide a report establishing that the buildings, equipment and sanitation program 
comply with the regulatory requirements. 

7. describe, in details, the reporting system to be used to meet the reporting requirements of 
Health Canada. 

8. Prior to the grant of the License the Producer must obtain the approval of Health Canada 
to a pre-licence compliance inspection. 

 
Vodis submitted an application to Health Canada in the required form and on January 15, 2014 
received a letter from Health Canada indicating compliance of the Vodis application to the above 
Producer requirements upon the implementation of the planned cultivation, storage, security and 
security systems proposals and verification of the receipt of the required security clearances. 
 
 
The Company has no operating history and an evolving business model. 
 
The Company has no operating history under the new License regime and its business model is 
still evolving. The Company’s ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon its ability 
to obtain adequate financing and to reach profitable levels of operations but the Company has no 
proven history of performance, earnings or success. There can be no assurance that the Company 
will achieve profitability or obtain future financing. 
 
Uncertain Demand 
 
Demand for the Company’s marijuana products is dependent on a number of social, political and 
economic factors that are beyond its control. While the Company believes that demand for its 
products will continue to grow, there is no assurance that such demand will exist or that its 
products will be purchased to satisfy such demand.  
 
Regulatory Regime 
 
The current regulation of the medical marijuana industry adopted by Health Canada, Marihuana 
for Medical Purposes Regulation (“MMPR”) which became effective April 1, 2014, is currently 
subject to a court challenge in British Columbia that may result in a review of the regulations and 
adversely impact the Company’s sales and business operations.  
 
Competition 
 
The Company operates in a highly competitive marketplace with various competitors. Increased 
competition may result in reduced gross margins and/or loss of market share, either of which 
would seriously harm its business and results of operations. Management cannot be certain that 
the Company will be able to compete successfully against current or future competitors or that 
competitive pressure will not seriously harm its business. Some of the Company’s competitors are 
much larger and have greater access to capital, sales, marketing, and other resources. These 
competitors may be able to respond more rapidly to new regulations or devote greater resources 
to the development, promotion and sale of their products than the Company can. Furthermore, 
some of these competitors may make strategic acquisitions or establish cooperative relationships 
among themselves or with third parties in the industry to increase their ability to rapidly gain 
market share.  
 
Reliance on Key Personnel 
 
To date, the Company has been dependent on a relatively small number of key officers and 
employees. The Company’s senior executives have experience in the industry and with the 
Company’s business, products and customers. The loss of knowledge of the Company’s 
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operations, management expertise and technical proficiency as a result of the loss of one or more 
members of the Company’s core management team, could result in a diversion of management 
resources or a temporary executive gap, or negatively affect the Company’s ability to develop and 
pursue other business strategies, which could materially adversely affect the Company’s business 
and/or financial results.  
 
Share Price and Volume Volatility 
 
The Company’s common shares may be affected by limited or sporadic trading volumes, which 
may affect its shareholders' ability to sell the Company’s common shares.  The Company’s share 
price may be volatile and could be subject to wide fluctuations due to a number of factors 
including the risk factors described in this Form 2A. In addition, broad fluctuations in the 
financial markets as well as economic conditions may adversely affect the market price of the 
Company’s common shares. 
 
Fluctuation in Operating Results 
 
The Company may experience fluctuations in future quarterly operating results that may be 
caused by many factors, including but not limited to: (i) variability of sales to new and existing 
customers; (ii) changes in the level of marketing and other operating expenses; (iii) competitive 
factors; and (iv) the timing of delivery.  Consequently, the Company believes that period-to-
period comparisons of its operating results will not necessarily be meaningful and should not be 
relied upon as an indication of future performance. It is likely that the Company’s future quarterly 
operating results from time to time will not meet the expectations of securities analysts or 
investors, which may have a material adverse effect on the market price of the Company’s 
common shares. Until the point where the Company is able to generate and predict continued 
positive cash flows from recurring revenue, it faces risk in utilizing its existing cash resources and 
potentially requiring further cash infusions from investors to maintain its operations. 
 
Disaster Recovery 
 
The Company’s sales operations are highly automated and a disruption or failure of its web site 
systems may delay its ability to complete sales and to provide services. A major disaster or other 
catastrophic event that results in the destruction or disruption of any of the Company’s critical 
business or information technology systems could severely affect its ability to conduct normal 
business operations. This possible disruption may materially and adversely affect the Company’s 
future operating results. 
 
Conflicts of Interest 
 
As certain of our directors and officers are directors, officers or shareholders of other companies, 
there are potential conflicts of interest to which our directors or officers may be subject to from 
time to time, in connection with our operations. 

 
18. Promoters  
 
18.1 For a person or company that is, or has been within the two years immediately 

preceding the date of the Listing Statement, a promoter of the Issuer or of a 
subsidiary of the Issuer, state: 

 
(a) the person or company's name:  
  Brian Gusko 
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(b) the number and percentage of each class of voting securities and equity 
securities of the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries beneficially owned, 
directly or indirectly, or over which control is exercised;  
See sections 20.1 (c)  

 
(c) the nature and amount of anything of value, including money, property, 

contracts, options or rights of any kind received or to be received by the 
promoter directly or indirectly from the Issuer or from a subsidiary of the 
Issuer, and the nature and amount of any assets, services or other 
consideration therefor received or to be received by the Issuer or a 
subsidiary of the Issuer in return; and 

   See sections 20.1 (c) 
 

(d) for an asset acquired within the two years before the date of the Listing 
Statement or thereafter, or to be acquired, by the Issuer or by a subsidiary 
of the Issuer from a promoter: 

 
(i) the consideration paid or to be paid for the asset and the method by 

which the consideration has been or will be determined, 
 

(ii) the person or company making the determination referred to in 
subparagraph (i) and the person or company's relationship with the 
Issuer, the promoter, or an associate or affiliate of the Issuer or of the 
promoter, and 

 
(iii) the date that the asset was acquired by the promoter and the cost of 

the asset to the promoter. 

18.2 (1) If a promoter referred to in section 18.1 is, as at the date hereof, or was 
within 10 years before the date hereof, a director, chief executive officer, 
or chief financial officer of any person or company that: 

a) was subject to an order that was issued while the promoter was 
acting in the capacity as director, chief executive officer or chief 
financial officer; or 

b) was subject to an order that was issued after the promoter ceased 
to be a director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer and 
which resulted from an event that occurred while the promoter was 
acting in the capacity as director, chief executive officer or chief 
financial officer, 

state the fact and describe the basis on which the order was made and 
whether the order is still in effect. 
 
See sections 13.6-13.9. 

 
(2) For the purposes of section 18.2 (1), “order” means: 

 
(a) a cease trade order; 
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(b) an order similar to a cease trade order; or 

 
(c) an order that denied the relevant person or company access to 

any exemption under securities legislation, that was in effect for a 
period of more than 30 consecutive days. 

 (3)  If a promoter referred to in section 18.2 (1): 

(a) is, as at the date hereof, or has been within the 10 years before the 
date hereof, a director or executive officer of any person or company 
that, while the promoter was acting in that capacity, or within a year 
of that person ceasing to act in that capacity, became bankrupt, 
made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or 
insolvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, 
arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver 
manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets, state the fact; or 

 
 See sections 13.6-13.9. 

(b) has, within the 10 years before the date hereof, become bankrupt, 
made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or 
insolvency, or become subject to or instituted any proceedings, 
arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, 
receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold the assets of the 
promoter, state the fact. 

 
See sections 13.6-13.9. 

 (4)  Describe the penalties or sanctions imposed and the grounds on which 
they were imposed or the terms of the settlement agreement and the 
circumstances that gave rise to the settlement agreement, if a promoter 
referred to in section 18.2(1) has been subject to: 

(a) any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to provincial 
and territorial securities legislation or by a provincial and territorial 
securities regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement 
agreement with a provincial and territorial securities regulatory 
authority; or 

 
   See sections 13.6-13.9. 

(b) any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory 
body that would be likely to be considered important to a reasonable 
investor in making an investment decision. 
 

   See sections 13.6-13.9. 

 (5)  Despite section 18.2(4), no disclosure is required of a settlement 
agreement entered into before December 31, 2000 unless the disclosure 
would likely be considered important to a reasonable investor in making 
an investment decision. 
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19. Legal Proceedings 
 
19.1 Describe any legal proceedings material to the Issuer to which the Issuer or a 

subsidiary of the Issuer is a party or of which any of their respective property is 
the subject matter and any such proceedings known to the Issuer to be 
contemplated, including the name of the court or agency, the date instituted, the 
principal parties to the proceedings, the nature of the claim, the amount claimed, 
if any, if the proceedings are being contested, and the present status of the 
proceedings. 

 
There are no legal proceedings or pending legal proceedings to which we are or are likely to be a 
party to or of which our business is likely to be the subject of. 

 
19.2 Regulatory actions - Describe any: 
 

(a) penalties or sanctions imposed against the Issuer by a court relating to 
provincial and territorial securities legislation or by a securities regulatory 
authority within the three years immediately preceding the date hereof; 

 
(b) other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body 

against the Issuer necessary to contain full, true and plain disclosure of all 
material facts relating to the securities being listed; and 

 
(c) settlement agreements the Issuer entered into before a court relating to 

provincial and territorial securities legislation or with a securities 
regulatory authority within the three years immediately preceding the date 
hereof. 

 
 N/A. 
 
20. Interest of Management and Others in Material Transactions 
 
20.1 Describe, and state the approximate amount of, any material interest, direct or 

indirect, of any of the following persons or companies in any transaction within 
the three years before the date of the Listing Statement, or in any proposed 
transaction, that has materially affected or will materially affect the Issuer or a 
subsidiary of the Issuer: 

 
(a) any director or executive officer of the Issuer; 

 
(b) a person or company that is the direct or indirect beneficial owner of, or 

who exercises control or direction over, more than 10 percent of any class 
or series of your outstanding voting securities; and 

 
(c) an associate or affiliate of any of the persons or companies referred to in 

paragraphs (a) or (b). 
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The directors, senior officers and principal shareholders of the Company as at the date hereof and 
on Closing of the Acquisition or any associate or affiliate of the foregoing have had no material 
interest, direct or indirect, in any transactions in which the Company has participated within the 
three year period prior to the date of this Listing Statement, or will have any material interest in 
any proposed transaction, which has materially affected or will materially affect the Company 
except as set out in section 6.10 above and as follows: 
 
1. On Closing of the Acquisition, 3,600,000 common shares at a deemed price of $0.05 per 

share will be issued to Otto Folprecht and Mr. Folprecht will become President, CEO and 
a director of the Company; 
 

2. On Closing of the Acquisition, 10,800,000 common shares at a deemed price of $0.05 per 
share will be issued to Ivan Miliovski and Mr. Miliovski will become a director of the 
Company; 

 
3. On Closing of the Acquisition, 720,000 common shares at a deemed price of $0.05 per 

share (1.5%) will be issued as a finder’s fee to Brian Gusko and Mr. Gusko will become 
CFO and a director of the Company; and 

 
4. On Closing of the Acquisition, 10,800,000 common shares at a deemed price of $0.05 per 

share will be issued to Derek Good, a principal shareholder of the Company. 
 
21. Auditors, Transfer Agents and Registrars 
 
21.1 State the name and address of the auditor of the Issuer. 
 

The Company’s auditor is Eccelerant Accounting Ltd., Chartered Accountants, located at 700 – 
595 Howe Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 2T5. 

 
21.2 For each class of securities, state the name of any transfer agent, registrar, 

trustee, or other agent appointed by the Issuer to maintain the securities register 
and the register of transfers for such securities and indicate the location (by 
municipality) of each of the offices of the Issuer or transfer agent, registrar, 
trustee or other agent where the securities register and register of transfers are 
maintained or transfers of securities are recorded.   

 
The transfer agent and registrar of the Company’s common shares is Equity Financial Trust 
Company, located at Suite 1620, 1185 West Georgia Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6E 
4E6. 

 
22. Material Contracts 
 
22.1 Give particulars of every material contract, other than contracts entered into in 

the ordinary course of business that was entered into within the two years before 
the date of Listing Statement by the Issuer or a subsidiary of the Issuer. 

 
The following are the material contracts entered into by the Company since incorporation: 
 
1. Transfer Agent, Registrar and Disbursing Agent Agreement dated July 18, 2012 between 

the Company and Equity Financial Trust Company. 
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2. Escrow Agreement dated July 19, 2012 between the Company, Equity Financial Trust 
Company and certain principal shareholders (see: section 11 - “Escrowed Securities”). 

 
3. Letter of Intent and/or Agreement dated March 13, 2014 between the Company and Vodis 

Innovative Pharmaceuticals Inc. 
 

4.  Lease Agreement of Vodis for the production facilities in Delta. 
 
5. Application of Vodis for the MMPR License. 

 
6. Purchase Agreement dated for reference May 15, 2014 between the Company, 0934145 

B.C. Ltd. and Pencho Todorev Batanov, Ivan Valentinov Miliovski, Derek Good and Otto 
Folprecht.  

 
22.2 If applicable, attach a copy of any co-tenancy, unitholders' or limited partnership 

agreement. 
 
 N/A. 
 
23. Interest of Experts 
 
23.1 Disclose all direct or indirect interests in the property of the Issuer or of a Related 

Person of the Issuer received or to be received by a person or company whose 
profession or business gives authority to a statement made by the person or 
company and who is named as having prepared or certified a part of the Listing 
Statement or prepared or certified a report or valuation described or included in 
the Listing Statement. 

 
23.2 Disclose the beneficial ownership, direct or indirect, by a person or company 

referred to in section 23.1 of any securities of the Issuer or any Related Person of 
the Issuer. 

 
23.3 For the purpose of section 23.2, if the ownership is less than one per cent, a 

general statement to that effect shall be sufficient. 
 
23.4 If a person, or a director, officer or employee of a person or company referred to 

in section 23.1 is or is expected to be elected, appointed or employed as a 
director, officer or employee of the Issuer or of any associate or affiliate of the 
Issuer, disclose the fact or expectation. 

 
N/A. 

 
24. Other Material Facts 
 
24.1 Give particulars of any material facts about the Issuer and its securities that are 

not disclosed under the preceding items and are necessary in order for the 
Listing Statement to contain full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts 
relating to the Issuer and its securities. 

  
 N/A. 
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25. Financial Statements  
 
25.1  Provide the following audited financial statement for the Issuer: 

(a) copies of all financial statements including the auditor's reports required 
to be prepared and filed under applicable securities legislation for the 
preceding three years as if the Issuer were subject to such law; and 

 
(b) a copy of financial statements for any completed interim period of the 

current fiscal year. 
 
 See Schedule I. 

 
25.2 For Issuers re-qualifying for listing following a fundamental change provide 
 

(a) the information required in sections 5.1 to 5.3 for the target; 
 
(b) financial statement for the target prepared in accordance with the 

requirements of National Instrument 41-101 General Prospectus 
Requirements as if the target were the Issuer; 

(c) pro-forma consolidated financial statements for the New Issuer giving 
effect to the transaction for: 

 
(i) the last full fiscal year of the Issuer, and 

(ii) any completed interim period of the current fiscal year.  

 N/A. 
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CERTIFICATE OF THE ISSUER 

The foregoing contains full, true and plain disclosure of all material information relating 
to Southbridge Resources Corp. It contains no untrue statement of a material fact and 
does not omit to state a material fact that is required to be stated or that is necessary to 
prevent a statement that is made from being false or misleading in light of the 
circumstances in which it was made. 

Dated at Vancouver, British Columbia 

this ____ day of June, 2014. 

 

   
 
Chief Executive Officer 

  
Chief Financial Officer 

   
   
  
Director 

  
Director 
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Schedule I 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SOUTHBRIDGE RESOURCES CORP. 
 
 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2014 
 

(Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
 

(Unaudited – Prepared by Management) 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE TO READER 
 
 

Under National Instrument 51 – 102, Part 4, subsection 4.3(3)(a), if an auditor has not performed a review of the 
condensed consolidated interim financial statements, they must be accompanied by a notice indicating that the 
financial statements have not been reviewed by an auditor. 
 
The accompanying condensed consolidated interim financial statements of Southbridge Resources Corp. (“The 
Company”) have been prepared by and are the responsibility of the Company’s management and the Board of 
Directors. 
 
The Company’s independent auditor has not performed a review of these condensed consolidated interim 
financial statements in accordance with standards established by the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants 
for a review of condensed consolidated interim financial statements by an entity’s auditor.  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



SOUTHBRIDGE RESOURCES CORP. 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
Unaudited – Prepared by Management 
(Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
 

  
March 30,  

2014  
June 30,  

2013 

     
Assets     
     
Current     
  Cash $ 375,275 $ 49,396 
  Sales taxes receivable  1,792  18,802 
  Loan receivable (Note 2)  250,000  - 
     
  627,067  68,198 
Exploration and evaluation assets (note 5)  72,068  72,068 
     
 $ 699,135 $ 140,266 
     
Liabilities     
     
Current     
  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  49,600  20,289 
     
Shareholders’ Equity     
     
Share capital (note 6)  814,900  244,500 
Shares-based payment reserve  39,091  39,091 
Deficit  (204,456)  (163,614) 
     
  649,535  119,977 
     
 $ 699,135 $ 140,266 

 
Nature and continuance of operations (Note 1) 
 
 
These condensed consolidated interim financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors 
on May 30, 2014.  They are signed on the Company’s behalf by: 
    
    
    
    

“Martin Cotter” Director “Neal Iverson” Director 
Martin Cotter  Neal Iverson  

 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated interim financial statements. 



SOUTHBRIDGE RESOURCES CORP. 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 
Unaudited – Prepared by Management 
(Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
 

 
 
 

Three-Month Period Nine-Month Period 
 Ended March 31, Ended March 31, 
            2014          2013 

 
         2014             2013 

     
EXPENSES         
 Consulting (recovery)  (2,394)  2,831  -  23,406 
 Office and miscellaneous  12,140  6,743  12,275  6,835 
 Professional fees  16,984  5,000  15,804  28,453 
 Share-based compensation  -  1,058  -  1,058 
 Transfer agent and filing fees  3,855  -  12,763  - 
         
Net Loss for Period  30,585  15,632  40,842  59,752 
         
Deficit, Beginning of Period  173,871  128,838  163,614  84,718 
         
Deficit, End of Period  $

4
4 

204,456 $
4
4 

144,470 $
4
4 

204,456 $
4
4 

144,470 

         
Loss Per Share $

4
4 

0.005 $
4
4 

0.01 $
4
4 

0.007 $
4
4 

0.02 
         
Weighted Average Number of          
Common Shares Outstanding  6,157,671  2,553,425  6,157,671  2,553,425 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated interim financial statements. 



SOUTHBRIDGE RESOURCES CORP. 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 
Unaudited – Prepared by Management 
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)  
 
 

 
  

 
Issued Capital 

 
 

Series A 

 
 

Series B 

Share- 
based 

Payment 

  

 Shares Amount Warrants Warrants Reserve Deficit Equity 
  $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Balance,        
June 30, 2013 6,010,000 244,500 - - 39,091 (163,614) 119,977 
Common shares 4,750,000 630,000 - - - - 630,000 
Share issue costs - (59,600) - - - - (59,600) 
Comprehensive 
loss 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(40,842) 

 
(40,842) 

Balance,        
March 31, 2014 10,760,000 814,900 - - 39,091 (204,456) 649,535 

 
 
 

 
 
 
  

 
Issued Capital 

 
 

Series A 

 
 

Series B 

Share- 
based 

Payment 

  

 Shares Amount Warrants Warrants Reserve Deficit Equity 
  $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Balance,        
June 30, 2012 6,010,000 35,500 206,000 33,000  (84,718) 189,782 
Series A special 
warrants 

 
(4,160,000) 

 
- 

 
(206,000) 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(206,000) 

Series B special 
warrants 

 
(350,000) 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(33,000) 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(33,000) 

Common shares 4,510,000 239,000 - - - - 239,000 
Share based 
payments 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
1,058 

 
- 

 
1,058 

Comprehensive 
loss 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(59,752) 

 
(59,752) 

Balance,        
March 31, 2013 6,010,000 274,500 - - 1,058 (144,470) 131,088 

 
 
 

 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated interim financial statements. 



SOUTHBRIDGE RESOURCES CORP. 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
Unaudited – Prepared by Management 
(Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Nine months 
ended March 31, 

2014 

 
 

Nine months 
ended March 31, 

2013 
   
   
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   
 Loss for the year $ (40,842) $ (59,752) 
 Item not affecting cash:   
  Share-based compensation  -  1,058 
 Changes in non-cash working capital items:   
  Decrease (increase) in sales taxes receivable  17,010  (11,107) 
  Increase in loan receivable  (250,000)  - 
  Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities  29,311  (892) 
   
 Net cash used in operating activities  (244,521)  (70,693) 
   
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   
 Mineral property expenditures   -  (52,267) 
   
 Net cash used in investing activities  -  (52,267) 
   
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES   
 Proceeds from share issuance  630,000  - 
 Share issuance costs   (59,600)  (52,267) 
   
   
 Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities  570,400  (52,267) 
   
   
Increase (decrease) in cash for the period  325,879  (122,690) 
   
Cash, beginning of period  49,396   175,401  
   
Cash, end of period $ 375,275 $ 52,441 
   
Cash paid during the period for interest $  -    $  -    
   
Cash paid during the period for income taxes $ -    $ -    
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated interim financial statements. 



 
SOUTHBRIDGE RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2014 
Unaudited – Prepared by Management 
(Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
    
 
1. NATURE AND CONTINUANCE OF OPERATIONS 
 

The Company was incorporated pursuant to the provisions of the British Columbia Business Corporations 
Act on October 31, 2011.  The Company together with its subsidiary (collectively referred to as the 
“Company”) is in the business of identifying, acquiring, exploring and developing prospective mineral 
concessions in Canada. 

 
The Company’s head office address is 200 – 1687 West Broadway, Vancouver, British Columbia, 
Canada V6J 1X2.  

  
These condensed consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared on a going concern 
basis which assumes that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the 
normal course of business. The Company has no source of revenue or operating cash flows needed to 
finance exploration activities and pay administrative expenses. The continuing operations of the Company 
are dependent upon its ability to continue to raise adequate financing and to commence profitable 
operations in the future. Management believes it will be successful in raising the necessary funding to 
continue operations, however, there is no assurance that any funding will be available on terms 
acceptable to the Company or at all. These material uncertainties may cast significant doubt about the 
ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. 
 
These condensed consolidated interim financial statements do not include adjustments to amounts and 
classifications of assets and liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue 
operations. 
 

2. PROPOSED TRANSACTION 
 

The Company entered into a letter agreement to conduct a due diligence review of the proposed business 
of Vodis Innovative Pharmaceuticals Inc. (“VODIS”).  VODIS has made an application to Health Canada 
to become a Licensed Producer under the Medical Purposes Regulation and intends to acquire all of the 
operating assets of 934145 BC Ltd. (“BC Ltd”) which is currently in production under the previous Health 
Canada regulations. 
 
The Company has provided an interest-free loan to BC Ltd. Of $250,000 (“Loan”) and has agreed to 
provide an additional $250,000 upon closing of the acquisition to complete the upgrading to the current 
production facilities.  In the event that the transaction does not close, the Loan is repayable within 3 
months. 
 
The acquisition agreement contemplates that the Company will change its name to VODIS and will issue 
36 million common shares, subject to an escrow agreement, to the principals of VODIS and acquire the 
Assets for one dollar, and repay the loans outstanding to the shareholders of BC Ltd. in the amount of 
$500,000.    
 
  



 
SOUTHBRIDGE RESOURCES CORP. 
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2014 
Unaudited – Prepared by Management 
(Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
    
 
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION  
 

Statement of Compliance  
 
These condensed consolidated interim financial statements of the Company for the period ended March 
31, 2014 have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standard 34 ‘Interim Financial 
Reporting’ (“IAS 34”) using accounting policies consistent with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and 
interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”). 
 
Basis of presentation 
 
These condensed consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared on the basis of 
accounting policies and methods of computation with those applied in the Company’s annual 
consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2013.  The accounting policies applied in 
these condensed consolidated interim financial statements are based on IFRS issued and outstanding as 
of March 31, 2014. 
 
These condensed consolidated interim financial statements do not include all of the information required 
for full annual financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the annual consolidated 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2013. 
 
Critical accounting estimates and judgments  
 
The preparation of condensed consolidated interim financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires 
management to make estimates about and apply assumptions or subjective judgment to future events 
and other matters that affect the reported amounts of the Company’s assets, liabilities, expenses and 
related disclosures. Assumptions, estimates and judgments are based on historical experience, 
expectations, current trends and other factors that management believes to be relevant at the time at 
which the Company’s condensed consolidated interim financial statements are prepared. Management 
reviews, on a regular basis, the Company’s accounting policies, assumptions, estimates and judgments in 
order to ensure that the condensed consolidated interim financial statements are presented fairly and in 
accordance with IFRS.  
 
Critical accounting estimates and judgments are those that have a significant risk of causing material 
adjustment and are often applied to matters or outcomes that are inherently uncertain and subject to 
change. As such, management cautions that future events often vary from forecasts and expectations 
and that estimates routinely require adjustment.  

 
Management considers the following areas to be those where the significant estimates, which may 
involve assumptions requiring the application of judgments, are used in the preparation of the Company’s 
condensed consolidated interim financial statements.  
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3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (cont’d...) 
 

Critical accounting estimates and judgments (cont’d…) 
 

Carrying value and recoverability of exploration and evaluation assets  
 
The carrying amount of the Company’s exploration and evaluation assets does not necessarily represent 
present or future values, and the Company’s exploration and evaluation assets have been accounted for 
under the assumption that the carrying amount will be recoverable. Recoverability is dependent on 
various factors, including the discovery of economically recoverable reserves, the ability of the Company 
to obtain the necessary financing to complete the exploration and development and upon future profitable 
production or proceeds from the disposition of the assets themselves. Additionally, there are numerous 
geological, economic, environmental and regulatory factors and uncertainties that could impact 
management’s assessment as to the overall viability of its properties or to the ability to generate future 
cash flows necessary to cover or exceed the carrying value of the Company’s mineral properties.  
To the extent that any of management’s assumptions change, there could be a significant impact on the 
Company’s future financial position, operating results and cash flows.  
 
Fair value of founder’s shares, stock options and warrants  
 
Determining the fair value of stock options, warrants and the founder’s shares requires judgments related 
to the value of the shares based on subsequent selling prices, choice of a pricing model, the estimation of 
stock price volatility, and the expected term of the underlying instruments.  

 
Income taxes  
 
The estimation of income taxes includes evaluating the recoverability of deferred tax assets based on an 
assessment of the Company’s ability to utilize the underlying future tax deductions against future taxable 
income prior to expiry of those deductions. Management assesses whether it is probable that some or all 
of the deferred income tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is 
dependent upon the generation of future taxable income, which in turn is dependent upon the successful 
discovery, extraction, development and commercialization of mineral reserves. To the extent that 
management’s assessment of the Company’s ability to utilize future tax deductions changes, the 
Company would be required to recognize more or fewer deferred tax assets, and future income tax 
provisions or recoveries could be affected. 

 
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 Basis of consolidation 
 
 These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Southbridge Resources Corp. 

and its 100% owned Canadian subsidiary Southbridge Exploration Corp. which is controlled by the 
Company. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. 
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2014 
Unaudited – Prepared by Management 
(Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
    
 
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d...) 
 

Foreign exchange 
 
 The functional currency the Company and its subsidiary is the Canadian dollar.  
 
 Transactions in currencies other than the Canadian dollar are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on 

the dates of the transactions.  At the end of each reporting period, the monetary assets and liabilities of 
the Company that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange at the 
statement of financial position date while non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at historical 
rates.  Revenues and expenses are translated at the exchange rates approximating those in effect on the 
date of the transactions.  Exchange gains and losses arising on translation are included in the condensed 
unaudited consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss. 

 
 Exploration and evaluation assets 
 
 Exploration and evaluation expenditures incurred for regional reconnaissance or property investigations 

prior to the acquisition of a property are charged to operations.  Expenditures incurred subsequent to 
acquisition are capitalized and will be amortized on the unit-of-production basis when, and if, estimated 
proven or probable reserves can be determined by independent consulting engineers and production has 
begun.  When there is little prospect of further work on a property being carried out by the Company, the 
deferred expenditures associated with that property are charged to operations during the period such 
determination is made. The carrying amount of exploration and evaluation assets represents acquisition 
and exploration costs incurred to date after the property was acquired or optioned, less recoveries and 
write-offs, and is not intended to reflect present or future values. 

 
 Exploration and evaluation assets acquired under an option agreement where payments are made at the 

sole discretion of the Company, are capitalized at the time of payment. Option payments received are 
treated as a reduction in the carrying value of the related acquisition costs of the exploration and 
evaluation asset until the payments are in excess of acquisition costs, at which time they are then 
credited to operations. Option payments are at the discretion of the optionee, and, accordingly, are 
accounted for when received. 

 
 The carrying values of capitalized amounts are reviewed annually or when indicators of impairment are 

present.  In the case of undeveloped properties these may be only inferred resources to allow 
management to form a basis for the impairment review.  The review is based on the intentions for the 
development of such a property. 

 
 If it is determined that capitalized acquisition, exploration and evaluation costs are not recoverable, or the 

property is abandoned or management has determined impairment in value, the property is written down 
to its recoverable amount.  
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2014 
Unaudited – Prepared by Management 
(Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
    
 
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d…) 
 

Impairment of long-lived assets 
 

A long-lived asset is tested for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
its carrying amount may not be recoverable.  An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount 
of a long-lived asset, or a cash-generating unit, exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is 
the smallest identifiable group of long-lived assets which at the lowest level for which identifiable cash 
flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities.  Estimates of future cash 
flows used to test recoverability of a long-lived asset include only the future cash flows that are directly 
associated with, and that are expected to arise as a direct result of, its use and eventual disposition. In 
assessing value in use, the estimate future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset or cash-generating unit. 

 
An impairment loss is reversed if there is an indication that there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the 
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.  
 

 Asset retirement obligations 
 

The Company recognizes the liabilities for statutory, contractual, constructive or legal obligations 
associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets in the period when the liability arises. The net 
present value of the asset retirement obligation is capitalized to the long-live asset to which it relates with 
a corresponding increase to the liability in the period incurred. 

 
 The Company does not have any significant asset retirement obligations. 
 
 Income taxes 
 

Deferred tax is recorded using the statement of financial position liability method, providing for estimated 
tax effects on temporary differences; temporary differences being differences between the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation 
purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or 
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively 
enacted at the period-end date. 
 
A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which the asset can be utilized. To the extent that the Company does not consider it 
probable that a future tax asset will be recovered, it provides a valuation allowance against that excess. 
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d…) 
 
 Loss per share 
 
 The Company presents basic loss per share for its common shares, calculated by dividing the loss for the 

period by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted loss 
per share does not adjust the loss or the weighted average number of common shares outstanding when 
the effect is anti-dilutive.  

 
 Basic loss per share is calculated using the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the 

period.   
 
 Share-based payments 
 
 Share based payments arrangements in which the Company receives goods or services as consideration 

for its own equity instruments granted to non-employees are accounted for as equity settled share based 
payment transactions and measured at the fair value of goods and services received. If the fair value of 
the goods or services received cannot be estimated reliably, the share based payment transaction is 
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted at the date the Company receives the goods 
or services.   

 
 Financial instruments 
 
 The Company has classified its cash as fair value through profit and loss and accounts payable and 

accrued liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities. 
 
 Financial assets 
 

The Company classifies cash, its only financial asset as fair value through profit or loss; this category 
comprises derivatives, or assets acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing 
it in the near term. They are carried in the condensed consolidated interim statement of financial position 
at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the condensed consolidated interim statement of 
operations.  

 
Financial liabilities 
 
The Company classifies accounts payable and accrued liabilities, its only financial liability, as other 
financial liabilities; this category includes amounts due to related parties and accounts payables and 
accrued liabilities, all of which are recorded initially at fair value and measured periodically at amortized 
cost. 
 
New standards and interpretation 
 

 IFRS 10, “Consolidated Financial Statements” 
 
 IFRS 10, “Consolidated Financial Statements”, requires an entity to consolidate an investee when it is 

exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to 
affect those returns through its power over the investee. Under existing IFRS, consolidation is required 
when an entity has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain 
benefits from its activities. IFRS 10 replaces SIC-12, “Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities”, and parts 
of IAS 27, “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”. The Company has adopted these policies 
and they do not have a significant effect on the condensed consolidated interim financial statements. 
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d…) 
 

 New standards and interpretation (cont’d…) 
 

 IFRS 11, “Joint Arrangements” 
 
 IFRS 11, “Joint Arrangements”, requires a venturer to classify its interest in a joint arrangement as a joint 

venture or a joint operation. Joint ventures will be accounted for using the equity method of accounting 
whereas for a joint operation, the venturer will recognize its share of the assets, liabilities, revenue and 
expenses of the joint operation. Under existing IFRS, entities have the choice to proportionately 
consolidate or equity account for interests in joint ventures. IFRS 11 supersedes IAS 31, “Interests in 
Joint Ventures”, and SIC-13, “Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers”.  The 
Company has adopted these policies and they do not have a significant effect on the condensed 
consolidated interim financial statements 

  
 IFRS 12, “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities” 
 
 IFRS 12, “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”, establishes disclosure requirements for interests in 

other entities, such as joint arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles and off balance sheet 
vehicles. The standard carries forward existing disclosures and also introduces significant additional 
disclosure requirements that address the nature of, and risks associated with, an entity’s interests in other 
entities.  The Company has adopted these policies and they do not have a significant effect on the 
condensed consolidated interim financial statements. 

 
IAS 28, “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amended in 2011)” 

 
 IAS 28 (2011), “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”, supersedes IAS 28 “Investments in 

Associates” and prescribes the accounting for investments in associates and sets out the requirements 
for the application of the equity method when accounting for investments in associates and joint ventures.  
The Standard defines 'significant influence' and provides guidance on how the equity method of 
accounting is to be applied (including exemptions from applying the equity method in some cases). It also 
prescribes how investments in associates and joint ventures should be tested for impairment.  The 
Company has adopted these policies and they do not have a significant effect on the condensed 
consolidated interim financial statements. 

 
New standards not yet adopted 

 
 A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet effective as of 

December 31, 2013 and have not been applied in preparing these condensed consolidated interim 
financial statements. None of these are expected to have a material effect on the condensed consolidated 
interim financial statements of the Company.  

 
 IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments” 
 
 In November 2009, the IASB published IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”, which covers the classification 

and measurement of financial assets as part of its project to replace IAS 39, “Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement.” In October 2010, the requirements for classifying and measuring 
financial liabilities were added to IFRS 9. Under this guidance, entities have the option to recognize 
financial liabilities at fair value through earnings. IFRS 9 is effective on January 1, 2015. Early adoption is 
permitted and the standard is required to be applied retrospectively.  
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d…) 
 

 New standards not yet adopted (cont’d) 
 
 IFRS 13, “Fair Value Measurement”   
 
 IFRS 13, “Fair Value Measurement”, is a comprehensive standard for fair value measurement and 

disclosure requirements for use across all IFRS standards. The new standard clarifies that fair value is 
the price that would be received to sell an asset, or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants, at the measurement date. It also establishes disclosures about fair value 
measurement. Under existing IFRS, guidance on measuring and disclosing fair value is dispersed among 
the specific standards requiring fair value measurements and in many cases does not reflect a clear 
measurement basis or consistent disclosures. 

 
5. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 
 

 
Sona Property 

   

     
    
Acquisition costs:    
 Balance, June 30, 2013   $ 383   
 Cash paid during the period    - 
    
 Balance, March 31, 2014             383 
    
 

    
     
    
   Exploration costs:    
    Balance, June 30, 2013   $ 71,685   
    
    Geological    - 
    Drilling    - 
    
    Balance, March 31, 2014    - 
    
   Total costs   $ 72,068 
 
 

 
 
 

 
-Continued- 
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5. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS (cont’d...) 
 
 

 
Sona Property 

   

     
    
Acquisition costs:    
 Balance, June 30, 2012   $ 383   
 Cash paid during the period    - 
    
 Balance, June 30, 2013             383 
    
 

    
     
    
   Exploration costs:    
    Balance, June 30, 2012   $ 17,717   
    
    Geological    22,688 
    Drilling    31,280 
    
    Balance, June 30, 2013    71,685 
    
   Total costs   $ 72,068 

 
 

Title to mineral properties involves certain inherent risks due to the difficulties of determining the validity 
of certain claims as well as the potential for problems arising from the frequently ambiguous 
conveyancing history characteristic of many mineral properties.  The Company has investigated title to all 
of its mineral properties, and, to the best of its knowledge, title to all of its properties, except as described 
below, are properly registered and in good standing. 

 
 Sona property 
 

The Company acquired via staking a 100% registered and beneficial interest in four mineral claims in the 
Omineca Mining Division of British Columbia, known as Sona 1, Sona 2, Sona 3 and Sona 4.  These are 
held by its subsidiary, Southbridge Exploration Corp. 
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6. SHARE CAPITAL 
 
 Authorized: 
  

Unlimited number of common shares with no par value. 
 Unlimited number of preferred shares without par value. 
 
 Issuances of share capital: 

 
On March 19, 2014, the Company completed a non-brokered private placement of 3,200,000 common 
shares at a price of $0.10 per share for proceeds of $320,000.  The shares are subject to a holding period 
that expires on July 20, 2014.  In connection with the offering, 100,000 of the common shares were 
issued as a finder’s fee, and the Company paid an additional finder’s fee of $24,800.   
 
On March 31, 2014, the Company completed a non-brokered private placement of 1,550,000 common 
shares at $0.20 per share for proceeds of $310,000.  The shares are subject to a holding period that 
expires on August 1, 2014. In connection with the offering, the Company paid a finder’s fee of $24,800.   
 
During the year ended June 30, 2013, the Company, pursuant to the filing of a final prospectus, issued 
4,510,000 common shares upon the exercise of 4,160,000 previously issued series A special warrants ad 
350,000 previously issued series B special warrants. 

 
 Stock options 
 

The Company has an incentive stock option plan which provides that the Board of Directors of the 
Company may from time to time, in its discretion, and in accordance with CSE requirements, grant to 
directors, officers, employees and consultants to the Company, non-transferable options to purchase 
common shares, provided that the number of common shares reserved for issuance will not exceed 10% 
of the issued and outstanding common shares. In any twelve month period the number of options granted 
to any one individual shall not exceed 5% of the issued and outstanding common shares at the date of 
grant.  In any twelve month period the total number of options granted to persons providing investor 
relations activities shall not exceed 1% of the issued and outstanding common shares at the date of 
grant.  In any twelve month period the number of options granted to any one consultant shall not exceed 
2% of the issued and outstanding common shares at the date of grant.  Such options will be exercisable 
for a period of up to 10 years from the date of grant.  Vesting terms will be determined at the time of grant 
by the Board of Directors, except for options granted to persons providing investor relations activities that 
will vest in stages over twelve months with no more than one quarter vesting in any three month period. 
 

  
 

-Continued- 
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6. SHARE CAPITAL (cont’d...) 
 

 Stock option transactions for the nine month period ended March 31, 2014 are summarized as follows: 
 

 
 

 
 

Number 
of Options 

 
Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price 
   
Options outstanding, June 30, 2013  350,000 $ 0.05 
   
 Options granted during the year and outstanding   - $ -  
   
Options exercisable at March 31, 2014  350,000 $    0.05 

 
 
 
Stock option transactions for the year ended June 30, 2013 are summarized as follows: 
 

 
 

 
 

Number 
of Options 

 
Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price 
   
Options outstanding, June 30, 2012  - $ -  
   
 Options granted during the year and outstanding   350,000 $ 0.05 
   
Options exercisable at June 30, 2013  350,000 $    0.05 

 
As at March 31, 2014, 350,000 (June 30, 2013 – 350,000) stock options were outstanding with a weighted 
average remaining contractual life of 1.85 years (June 30, 2013 - 2.60 years). 
 
During the nine month period ended March 31, 2014, the Company granted Nil (June 30, 2013 – 350,000) 
stock options to officers and directors.  The options, which vest immediately, are exercisable for common 
stock on a one-for-one basis, until February 4, 2016. 
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6. SHARE CAPITAL (cont’d...) 

 
Share-based payments 

For the nine month period ended March 31, 2014, the Company recorded Nil (June 30, 2013 – $9,091) in 
share-based payment expense to operations. The weighted average fair value of the options granted 
during the year was $Nil (June 30, 2013 - $0.026) and was determined using the Black-Scholes option 
pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions: 

 
 March 31, 

2014 
March 31, 

2013 
   
Risk-free interest rate - 1.32% 
Expected life of options - 3 Years 
Annualized volatility - 80% 
Dividend rate - Nil 

 
 
7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  
 

 Key management includes directors (executive and non-executive) and senior officers of the Company. 
No compensation was paid or payable to key management personnel for the nine month periods ended 
March 31, 2014 and March 31, 2013. 

 
8. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

 
 The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as 

a going concern in order to pursue the investment and development of its projects. In the management of 
capital, the Company includes its cash balances and components of shareholders’ equity. 

 
 The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic 

conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, 
the Company may attempt to issue new shares, issue debt, acquire or dispose of assets or adjust the 
amount of cash and investments. 

 
The Company’s investment policy is to invest its cash in highly liquid short-term investments with 
maturities of 90 days or less from the original date of acquisition. 
 

 The Company currently is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. 
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9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 

Fair values 
The recorded value of the Company’s accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair 
value due to their demand nature and short term to maturity. Cash and loan receivable is carried at fair 
value using a level 1 fair value measurement. 

 
Credit risk 
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to credit risk consist of cash. The Company 
deposits cash with high quality financial institutions as determined by rating agencies in Canada for which 
management believes the risk of loss to be minimal.  
 
Currency risk 
The Company is primarily engaged in the acquisition of mineral properties which are located in Canada.  
Management believes that the risk of loss due to fluctuating currencies is minimal. 
 
Interest rate risk 

 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. 

 
The Company’s cash is held in financial institutions in interest bearing accounts. The Company currently 
does not have interest bearing debt and is not exposed to significant interest rate risk.   
 
Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its obligations as they become due. The 
Company’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet 
liabilities when due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by forecasting cash flows from operations 
and anticipating any investing and financing activities. Management and the Board of Directors are 
actively involved in the review, planning and approval of significant expenditures and commitments.  
Management believes that the Company has sufficient cash resources to meet its obligations as they 
become due. 
 
Price risk 
The Company is exposed to price risk with respect to commodity and equity prices. The ability of the 
Company to explore its mineral properties and the future profitability of the Company are directly related 
to the market price of gold and other precious metals. The Company monitors gold and other commodity 
prices to determine the appropriate course of action to be taken by the Company. 

 
 

 
 


